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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 13, 1996

ROBERT A. BITTENBENDER
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the
Citizens of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Repori (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
represents our continued commitment to sound and effective fiscal management and to responsible
financial reporting based on nationally recognized standards. This CAFR, which includes the
Commonwealth’s independently audited general purpose financial statements as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1996, will provide you and the financial community with all the information
required to fully assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations and the
management of its financial resources.

Continued growth in the national economy has aided the economic gains achieved in Pennsylvania
through the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, the
unemployment rate had declined to 5.1 percent, down from the prior fiscal year end rate of 5.9
percent. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 employment in Pennsylvania has risen 0.3 percent,
while personal income increased by 3.9 percent for the twelve month period ended March 31, 1996.
‘These economic improvements have been achieved despite several adverse conditions. First, in the
winter of 1996 the Commonwealth suffered from severe weather including a blizzard, followed by
heavy rains and flooding. The destruction of buildings, roads and bridges caused by ice and flooding,
severely disrupted commerce within the Commonwealth. Second, some structural changes in business
occurring nationwide are particularly affecting industries important to the Pennsylvania economy. A
contraction of the apparel industry, a restructuring of utility companies to prepare for greater
competitiorn, and cost-cutting efforts in the health-care industry, especially by hospitals, are examples
of important Pennsylvania industries contending with national trends.

On a budgetary basis, the Commonwealth’s General Fund ended the 1995-96 fiscal year with a
$184 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance prior to reserving $28 million for transfer to the
Tax Stabilization Reserve (Rainy Day) Fund.

Economic development continues to be a long-term commitment of the Commonwealth as
evidenced by the significant funds appropriated for loans and grants to employers. Among these
loans and grants were $36.0 million to Ben Franklin/Industrial Resource Centers to create jobs
through the development and application of technology and advanced production techniques and
$26.2 million for infrastructure development of industrial sites, both from the General Fund; $9.0
miliion from the Sunny Day Fund to help industries expand and attract new businesses to
Pennsylvania; $22.8 million from the Capital Loan Fund for small business loans for the purchase
of equipment and working capital; and $21.4 million from the Machinery and Equipment Loan
Fund to provide low interest loans for machinery and equipment purchases.

Tax cuts enacted resulted in savings of $283.4 million to Pennsylvania taxpayers through reductions

in the Corporate Net Income, Capital Stock and Foreign Franchise, Inheritance, Insurance Premium
and other tax rates.
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Pennsylvania is further working to create jobs in other ways. It recognizes that success begins
with a well trained workforce by increasing funds for customized job training to $9.0 million and it
recognizes the opportunity to capitalize on the global marketplace by providing a new $2.8 million
appropriation for developing international trade.

The Commonwealth continued its commitment to its communities by providing $27 million for
the Housing and Redevelopment program to rebuild neighborhoods and to rehabilitate low income
housing, and additional funds to expand local tourism efforts.

Education is essential to Pennsylvania’s future. Nearly $3.4 billion was provided to our public
schools through the Basic Education Funding program. This represented a 4.5 percent increase over
the funding provided in the prior fiscal year for this program. Total funding for basic education was
nearly $5.7 billion, including funding for special education, pupil transportation, teacher retirement
and social security, and special programs to address the needs of economically and educationally
challenged students. Also, new funding was provided for grants to school districts to develop strategies
to address the increase in violence in our schools and to support alternative programs for students
that disrupt the learning environment. In addition, almost $1.5 billion was provided for higher
education institutions and students.

The need for additional correctional facilities continued. During the fiscal year ended June 30,
1996, capacity for incarcerated offenders increased by 1,146 beds with the opening of a 1,000 cell
correctional institution in Clearfield County and the addition of cell blocks at two facilities. The
conversion of a state mental hospital to a correctional institution that will eventually house 1,000
offenders was initiated and construction continued on a 640 cell prison in Chester County.

During the 1995-96 fiscal year, several major laws were enacted that created new programs or
modified existing programs:

— Act 1995-72 provided a funding mechanism for the settlement of a lawsuit caused by the
repeal of the automobile centralized emission inspection program. The Act provided that
certain prior year appropriations for hazardous waste control and certain moneys in the
Catastrophic Loss Benefit Continuation Fund could be used to provide necessary funding.

— Act 1996-10 increased the amount of the General Fund budgetary basis fiscal year end
surplus to be transferred to the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund (Rainy Day Fund) from 10
percent to 15 percent. It also provided for an additional $30 million transfer, above the 15
percent, from the 1994-95 General Fund budgetary basis fiscal year end surplus to the Tax
Stabilization Reserve Fund during 1995-96.

— Act 1996-35 made numerous revisions to the Public Welfare Code to promote self sufficiency
through work. The Act included changes in medical services available to recipients, eligibility
criteria for cash and medical assistance including work requirements for able-bodied adults
without dependent children, and support services for employed recipients. This Act is
expected to result in significant cost savings to the Commonwealth.

— Act 1996-56 provided an expanded educational aid program for members of the Pennsylvania
National Guard.

— Act 1996-57 reformed Workers’ Compensation laws that will result in savings to both the
Commonwealth and other employers.
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Also, beginning in January 1996, a Special Session of the Legislature was convened to deal with
a blizzard and the resulting flood emergency. Laws enacted by the Special Session which affected
the 1995-96 fiscal year include: increasing the amount of unused appropriated funds that may be
transferred for disaster relief (Special Session #2, Act 1996-1), conforming State law to Federal law
to ensure accessibility to Federal funds (Special Session #2, Act 1996-2), and appropriating a portion
of the tax amnesty revenues to establish a supplemental individual assistance for individuals suffering
losses during the weather related disasters and to provide the necessary matching funds to participate
in the Federal Individual and Family Assistance Program (Special Session #2, Act 1996-3).

The Commonwealth continues to make significant investments in programs to support the
economically needy through General Assistance, Aid to Families with Dependent Children, and
Medical Assistance. State and Federal expenditures for these programs amounted to $8.3 billion in
the 1995-96 fiscal year. Approximately 43 percent of the total cost of assistance to the economically
needy is funded by the General Fund. The balance is provided by the Federal government and
through various program collection activities conducted by the Commonwealth. Additional funding
is obtained through a Medical Assistance Intergovernmental Transfer which provided contributions
in the 1995-96 fiscal year totaling $339 million. It should be noted, as previously mentioned, that
actions by both the Federal government and the Commonwealth including amendments to the state’s
Public Welfare Code are expected to produce significant cost savings in these programs.

In summary, the general purpose financial statements show that commitment to fiscal discipline
has resulted in continued financial improvements, allowed the Commonwealth to lower taxes, and
to continue funding programs that provide equity in education, enhance economic development and
meet critical human service needs. ‘

Sincerely,

A0 e,

Robert A. Bittenbender
Secretary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 13, 1996

HARVEY C. ECKERT _
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Bittenbender:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. This report, which includes the General
Purpose Financial Staternents (GPFS), was prepared by the Office of the Budget, Comptrolier Operations, pursuant to the
power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget
by Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984.

The financial statements contained in this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmenial Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They
were jointly audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Ernst & Young LLP, a
nationally recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors’ Report, expressing an unqualified opinion on
the GPFS, is included in this financial report.

Ibelieve the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as
measured by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor, the
Members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain 2 full understanding of the
Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial pesition and operating results
by fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules;
certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social and
demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFQA to
determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania {Commonwealth) is & primary government.
The primary government, or PG, includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of the Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which
are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented
component units. Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable;
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misteading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability
include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its
will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on, the PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered.

Based upon the financial accountability criteria, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the
Notes to Financial Statements, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units,
except the State Employes’ Retirement System, which is included in the Commonwealth’s primary government as a
blended component unit:
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Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership —Govemmental Fund

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund

Public School Employes’ Retirement System—Fiduciary Fund

State Employes’ Retirement System—Pension Trust Fund

State Public School Building Authority—Governmental Fund

State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their
specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the agency
level by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure
categories include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed
charges. An encumbrance system is used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve that part of an
appropriation until the actual liabilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do
not exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that
unencumbered appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in
the new fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in the
Commonwealth’s governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance.
Funds reserved for appropriations carried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time
any remaining balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise
extended for some other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance
carried forward from one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated item.

Accounting records of most departments under the Governor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations.
Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liguor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for
the payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor General,
and the Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, maintain separate accounting systems.

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary basis by fund, agency
and -appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment
requisitions and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and
expenditures are adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonabie assurance that financial transactions
are execuled in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and
that the financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the Department
of Revenue’s records of cash receipts.

THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPFS)
Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GPES in
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary

basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on
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the modified accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
The College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting
guidance and reporting practices applicable to governmental colleges and universities, as outlined in the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of Colleges and Universities, and pronouncements issued by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

In measuring financial position and operating results on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as compared to the
budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available to finance current
obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are generally reported when goods and services are received
and a liability incurred, rather than when cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPFES as of a
fiscal year end include amounts which actually will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial data at the time the financial
statements are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of credits and refunds, and accounts payable
and accrued expenditures for which a liability has been incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The pace of economic activity in the United States varied over abroad range during the 1995-96 fiscal year. Annualized
quarterly growth rates were as low as 0.3 percent to as high as 4.2 percent. The variation in economic growth rates and the
divergent signals presented by various releases of economic data has provoked a debate on the need for monetary restraints
to be applied by the Federal Reserve Board to moderate growth in the hope of prevention of rising inflation. Since the
Federal Reserve Board decided not to change the federal funds rate at its meeting in September 1996, it appears the Board
does not believe it is necessary to restrain economic growth to control inflation. Continued moderate economic growth in
the national economy will help produce further economic gains in Pennsylvania

Forecasts of the national economy in the second half of 1996 predict economic growth to slow to a rate of approximately
2 percent (annualized). This lower rate of growth is likely to end the trend of a declining unemployment rate and keep
inflation under control. Pennsylvania, along with the other Mideast region states, will likely see less growth in its economy
than the national average. This trend of lower than national growth should not, however, prevent continuing employment
and income gains from occurring in Pennsylvania.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal point in any assessment of Pennsylvania’s financial
position. It accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere
and for the major portion of Commonwealth expenditures. Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and
sales and use taxes, constitute approximately 62 percent of the General Fund budgetary basis revenues. Major fund
expenditures are for general government, protection of persons and property, public health and welfare, public education,
conservation of natural resources, economic development, transportation and debt service on all obligations except those
incurred for highway or other special revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated
within its adopted General Fund budget, 2s amended, is presented in the “Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis),” included in the GPFS.

Budgetary Basis: At June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary
basis) of $156.2 million in the General Fund. This compares to a budgetary basis fund balance of $437.0 million, as
restated, at June 30, 1995. The budgetary basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 was the result of
revenue collections totaling $24,929.4 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $25,270.8 million, plus other net
financing sources totaling $60.6 million. Included in the $25,270.8 million appropriation authorizations are $113.6 million
of state supplemental appropriations and $92.2 million in federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the fiscal
year.
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The following table shows the General Fund’s actual year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and increases or
decreases (expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/

Undesignated Increase
At June 30 Fund Balance {Decrease)
1992 $ 8.8 $ 4597
1993 214.9 206.1
1954 302.2 87.3
1995 (Restated) 437.0 134.8
1996 156.2 (280.8)

Modifted Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $635.2
millton, a decrease of $53.1 million from the $688.3 million fund balance at June 30, 1995. Total assets increased by
$519.9 million to $3,705.1 million. Liabilities increased $573.0 million to $3,069.9 million. These changes and others are
reflected in the General Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows.

General Fund
Summary Comparative Balance Sheets (GAAP Basis)
(Expressed in Millions)
Increase
June 30,1996  June 30, 1995 (Decrease)
Assets
Cash and temporary InVESRENLS ......c.eeeeeeeersmcnrasseeeee .. $ 1,1554 $ 1,367.5 $ (212.1)
Receivables, Net ..o, 874.9 846.8 T28.1
Due from other funds/component units/governments ........... 1,274.9 965.3 309.6
Food STamp COUPONS .t ee s 391.6 e 391.6
OFhET ASSEES - eemeeeecceeee et e e re e s e ra s e raeren 83 3.6 T 2.7
TOtA] ASSELS ...eimieere et ettt st e eeme e re e cameeaeeeennaeeas $ 3,705.1 $3,1852 $ 5199
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities ..................... $1,924.4 $1,829.6 5 948
Due to other funds/component units/governments ................ 739.1 649.7 894
Defermed reVenUE oo 406.4 17.6 388.8
Total LiabilIties ..o rererar e s e s s eaa s se e msesseae e 3,069.9 2,4960.9 573.0
Fund Balance
ReSEIVed ..o s 2534 2454 8.0
Unreserved:
Designated ....cooreeorieeeei et snr s 381.8 4429 (61.1)
Total Fund Balance .......ooeeeei et 635.2 688.3 (53.1)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance ...cooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 3,705.1 $ 3,185.2 $ 5199

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, which includes
the Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. These funds account for most general
operating revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1996 increased by $58.7 million to $1,986.3
million from a $1,927.6 million balance at the beginning of the fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund balances at June
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30, 1996 amount to $378.2 million as compared to a $104.8 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance a year ago.

Comparative summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (expressed in millions)
follow.

General Governmental Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects Funds totalled $30,926 million. This represents a 8.4 percent increase over the previous year.

‘Taxes constituted 55.7 percent of general governmental revenues; intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds,
constituted 30.8 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended :

r— ‘| Increase

Revenue Source June 30,1996  June 30, 1995 {Decrease)
TAXES «eeensrieaecemecceet et ee e e e e s se e e st ettt et eneerenee e eeanenes $ 17,220 $ 16,990 3 230
Licenses and fEES - ovocaeeee et 796 773 23
IntergoVernmMENtal ... ..coeveee et e s e eee 9,517 7,961 1,556
Charges for sales and SErviCes ........oorvmurereresessereeceremeeeeecens 1,312 895 417
INVESIMENt INCOME ....ceereeeerie v et s anaenn 153 145 8
LOMErY FECEIPES «..oee ettt eer e e e 1,699 1,596 103
Lease rental principal and interest .......co.oevovvrvveveecveeee e 2 2 R
L0117 VU RRORN teeererrrrer s 227 165 62
Total REVENUES ..ottt $ 30,926 $ 28,527 $ 2,399

Intergovernmental revenues increased $1,556 million due mainly to the newly reporting food stamp coupon revenue as
well as increased participation in the Federal Medicare Program.

Charges for sales and services increased $417 million primarily because of newly reported departmental revenues for
highway patrolling.

Tax revenue increased $230 million due primarily to an increase in employment and an improvement in the economic
condition of the Commonwealth.

Fiscal Years Ended
| Increase
Taxes by Type June 30, 1996  June 30, 1995 (Decrease)
PErSONAL IICOMIE 11rrerveeeeeooeoeoeeeoeoeoeoeeesoooeoeeoeeeeee oo os oo $ 5,165 $ 4979 $ 186
Sales and Use ....vveveveceiveeceeeeeee e et s 5,736 5,613 123
COTPOTATION ... cec e v ere e se s s s es e eas e naens 3,688 3,826 (138)
Liguid FUELS ettt e 730 730 R
L 11 TSRO 1,901 1.842 59
Total Tax REVENUE ........ceiveeeeeeeeetieeecce et e eeceneeevesssmnes $ 17,220 $ 16,990 $ 230

General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue,
Debt Service and Capitai Projects Funds totalled $30,567 million, an increase of $2,304 million over the previous year. Of
the total amount expended, public health and welfare accounted for 44.7 percent, public education for 24.3 percent and
transportation for 9.3 percent.
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Fiscal Years Ended

I" _l Increase

Expenditure Function June 30,1996  June 30, 1995 (Decrease)
General SOVEIMIMENT ....oc.....cvrrmrrererrenerreers s esssrr et e $ 2,631 $ 2313 $ 318
Protection of persons and property -.....ccccceceveeveersvmvsinseseeenans 2,345 ) 1,927 418
Public health and Welfare ......oocei oo 13,651 12,250 1,401
Public @dUCAON «.evoeeoeeeeve et s s st en 7418 7,007 411
Conservation of natural TESOUICES ......evverorreer vt eie e 349 572 (2233
Economic development and assistance ..........ooooveeeveeeeveeeeceen, 285 338 (53)
TIANSPOTEALION ... e 2,832 2,773 59
Capital QUHAY ...ttt er s a b enees 319 265 54
Debt service:

Principal TetifeMent .....c.occccoiov et re s e sesss v eeenee 448 517 (69)

Interest and fiscal charges ... 289 301 (12)

Total eXPEnITUIES ..oecevoeeeeeeeieee e e emrens $ 30,567 § 28,263 $ 2,304

Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $1,401 million or 11.4 percent over the previous fiscal year.
Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance
comprise a portion of the public health and welfare expenditure increase. Newly reporting food stamp coupon expenditures
also caused an increase in public health and welfare expenditures.

Expenditures for protection of persons and property increased by $418 million or 21.7 percent over the previous fiscal
year, due mainly to increased incarceration expenditures and legislative action that abolished the Department of
Environmental Resources and created the Department of Environmental Protection and the Department of Conservation
and Natural Resources. The classification of certain expenditures was changed from conservation of natural resounrces to
protection of persons and property. This also accounts for the decrease of $223 million in expenditures for conservation of
natural resources. , :

Expenditures for general government increased by $318 million or 13.7 percent primarily because of newly reported
highway patrol services.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS— GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The discretely presented component unit governmental fund type includes the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority, the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership, the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority and the State Public School Building
Authority. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1996 increased by $95.1 million to $373.9 million from a $278.8
million balance at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Revenues of the component unit governmental funds totaled $280.8 million at June 30, 1996. Lease rental principal
and interest revenue of $231.5 million represents 82.4 percent of total revenues.

Expenditures of the component unit governmental funds totated $795.4 million at June 30, 1996. Of the total amount
expended, debt service principal and interest expenditures were $331.7 million or 41.7 percent of total expenditures and
capital outlay was $422.0 million or 53.1 percent.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the
electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed
one and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five
fiscal years. The certified constitutional debt limit at August 31, 1996 was $33.1 billion. Quistanding capital project debt at
August 31, 1996 amounted to $3.9 billion.

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate approved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.
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The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1996 was $5,062 million. Total debt service

transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996
amounted to $718.4 million.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances
amounting to $543 million, a decrease of $122 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $665 million during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, This forecast reflects the need to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, highway bridges, mass transportation, water supply systems and parks and recreational
facilities. Debt principal retirements of $438 million are forecast during fiscal 1997, The table that follows shows total

outstanding long-term indebtedness for general obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most
recent fiscal years.

Qutstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1990 $ 4,634
1991 4788
1992 4,874
1993 5,041
1994 5,100
1995 5,041
1996 5,062

In addition 1o general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs

during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor

License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, arc concentrated in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including
Federal funds, are expected to increase by 2.5 percent and .6 percent, respectively. As a result of tax changes and expenditure
patterns that are likely to affect the cash receipts flow, the Commonwealth anticipates issuance of $750 million in General
Fund tax anticipation noies during the 1996-97 fiscal vear. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial paper
issuances (expressed in millions) during the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund 1ax
anticipation notes were not issued for the periods shown and are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issued
Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of
Issue Ended ' of the General Fund
June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1993 § 975 7%
1994 400 3
1995 600 4 )
1996 500 3
1997 (Estimated) 750 4

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit monies of the Commonwealth,
excluding certain component units, in state depositeries approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Monies deposited
are not required to be segregated by fund.

In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest monies of the Commonwealth that have accumulated
beyond the ordinary needs of the various Commonwealth Funds. Investment pools managed by the Treasury Department
include the following types of investments, weighted average maturity and allocated percent at June 30, 1996 as depicted
below.
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Weighted Average

: Maturity
Investment Type : (days) Percent
Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or EqQuivalent} .....o.ovooveeeoeeeeeeeern : 59 1.3
United States Treasury and Agency OblEAHONS ...voveeveeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeooee oo 828 12.8
Repurchase AGIECMENLS ..........c.oviiiiicimeemeceeerereetemrr et ettt eeeee e ee s e 2 76.7
Certificates of DIEPOSIL ...t e et et e e 199 1.9
Corporate Bonds and NOLES ...t eeeee e e eee e eeeee e 673 0.1
DT et e e et e s ra s eneateeenn 237 7.2

Temporary investments held by the Treasury Department amounted to $6.7 billion of the $8.8 billion reported on the
combined balance sheet as of June 30, 1996. Interest on investments controlled by the Treasury Department during the
fiscal year amounted to $375 million at an average yield of 5.8 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983.
The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits and tort liabilities, including automobile,
employe and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been estabiished to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage
is obtained for property losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence, Coverage
for property losses less than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
program.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds. Completed projects
and construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. Construction in progress at June 30, 1996 amounted to $363.8 million. Authorized but unissued
general obligation bonds at June 30, 1996 totalled $16.2 billion.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan programs for
econormic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth enterprise
funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1996 of $152.7 million, which represents a decrease of $151.8 millicn
from the $304.5 million retained earnings, reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds and a pension trust fund, reported total fund balance of $19,136
million, compared to $16,009 million in the previous year. Total fund balances of the expendable trust funds increased
$113 million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $2,791 million at June 30, 1996, The State Employes’
Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $16,345 million, an increase of $3,014 million from
the previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turnpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
earnings at June 30, 1996, totaling $1,805 million, which represents an increase of $69 million from the $1,736 million
retained earnings reported the previous yvear.

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported

a fund balance of $33,730 million at June 30, 1996, which represents a $4,929 million increase over the $28,801 million
previous fiscal year fund balance, as restated.
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The total fund equity for the College and University funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education,
a discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1996 was $296 million, compared to $247 million at June 30, 1995.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June
30, 1996 amounted to $4,323 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the
Commonwealth's general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors’ Report submitied herewith, was performed jointly by
the Department of the Auditor Generat and the independent public accounting firm of Ernst & Young LLP. It was performed
pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code of 1929 and
in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after their
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General. '

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, This represents the tenth consecutive year the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to-determine its
eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealth agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment to you to maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

\F Koy

Harvey C. Eckert

Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget
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For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1995
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Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirernent
systems whose comprehensive annual financiat
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
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El] ERNST & YOUNG LLP

2 S = Central Pennsylvania Practice
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania %(1)(7)_ kg?d:: gt?:é: .
Office of the Auditor General Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101 \EE"_
Harrisburg, PA 1712¢ ]
o
BARBARA HAFER i §
AUDITOR GENERAL i

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Tom Ridge, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

‘We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly andit the financial
statements of certain component units, which represent 77 percent of total assets of the Trust and Agency
Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, and 100 percent of the discretely presented
component units. The financial statements of these component units were audited by other auditors, including
Emnst & Young LLP acting separately, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion
expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component units, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. Ernst & Young LLP has audited separately 4 percent of total assets and 4 percent
of total revenues of the discretely presented component units. 7

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the '
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a 1
reasonable basis for our opinion. L

As discussed in Note B, the insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enter-
prise Fund, is based on actuarial analysis of historical experience adjusted to estimate the impact of Act 44 and
changes in claims management practices adopted by SWIF management. These factors should be considered
when evaluating the reported insurance loss liability.

[

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Commonwealth of Penn-
sylvania at June 30, 1996, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its Proprietary Funds for the
fiscal year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B, the Commonwealth adopted certain new accounting pronouncements related to grants :
and other financiai assistance. The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a discretely presented com- i
ponent unit, adopted new accounting pronouncements related to pensions and securities lending transactions. -
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Our andit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial staternents taken
as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Such information has been subjected to the auditing pro-
cedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit
and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, therefore,
express no opinion thereon. '

Pooutn._ ;é%v Sanct ¥ MLL?

November 15, 1996
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Total Total
Fiduciary - (Memorandum (Memorandum
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only) Only)
Special Debt Capital [Expendable Primary Component Reporting
General Revenue Service Praojects Trust Government Units Entity
REVENUES:
TAXES -.varaenerrrmvass snssssrensassssssssnsseasene 5 15635686 § 1549870 $ 34,492 § 5765 5 17225813 3 $ 17225813
Unemployment 1axes ...........c.ceeeeeereeene e e 1,661,526 1,661,526 1,661,526
License ang fees ... 161,909 634,241 Ve 90,147 886,297 886,297
Intergovernmenial .. 8,644,622 866,476 6,179 80,860 9,598,137 e 9,598,137
Charges for sales and services . 1,031,837 234,197 e 45,341 e 1,311,375 8,780 1,320,155
Investment income 83,226 61,414 1,346 6,738 166477 319,201 25.758 344,959
Lottery revenues .... 1,699277 e e 1,699,277 e 1,699,277
Lease rental principal and interest . e . 2,159 e e 2,159 231,486 233,645
OHBET ...corirenemrcsseantrenmeens senesrsesarens 156,104 69,729 156 786 460 227232 14,817 242.04%
TOTAL REVENUES ................ 25,713,381 5,115,204 3.661 93,536 2,005,235 32,931,017 280.841 33.211.858
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General ZOVEIMMENE .....oveecuevreereemeeees 1,131,906 1,498,016 595 17,969 2,648,486 e 2648486
Protection of persons and property ....... 2,321,790 10,941 12,731 45,072 2,390,534 4.002 3.394,536
Public health and welfare . 12,981,033 670,284 e 1,804,647 15,455,964 e 15,455,964
Public education ........c..... . T417,355 149 e o 7417504 1.604 7.419.108
Censervation of natural resources ........ 123,159 196,436 29,044 348,639 RN 348.639
Economic development and assistance 228,256 [7,596 39,240 285,092 36.066 321.158
Transportation .... 322,318 2,413,589 96,124 2,832,031 N 2.832,031
Capital cutlay 46,987 32,808 239,400 319,195 422007 741,212
Debt Service:
Principal retirement ... R . 447,790 Ce 447,790 169.525 617,315
Interest and fiscal charges ... 15,184 1 273,935 18 289,138 162.141 451,279
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ....... 24,587,988 4,839,820 721,725 417,152 1,867,688 32,434,373 795355 33.229.728
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ..o 1,125,393 275,384 (718,064 ) {323,616) 137,547 496,644 (514.514) (17.870)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds ........ociviici e 21,772 e 357,760 379.532 1,241,454 1,620,986
Refunding bond proceeds e s 216,016 R 216,016 Ce 216.016
Operating transfers in—Note H . 116,468 251,900 719,019 e e 1,087,387 851.896 1.939.283
Operating transfers out—Note H ......... (565,397 ) (453.014) (1,231) 705 (25,333) (1,044,270) (851.896) { 1.896.166 )
Operating wansfers from primary
government—Note H ............ooeieee 36,000 36,000
Operating transfers to component
units—Note H ..o (724893 ) (724893 ) {724,893 )
Payment to refunded boad escrow
BEENL oo ececerese s s e saressceneee (213,599 ) {213,599 ) { 667879 ) (881478)
Capital lease and installen: purchase
ObIigAtONS ..ucreeeeeecseces e 20,437 20,437 20437
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ..o (1,153,385 } {179,342) 720,205 358,465 (25,333) (279,390) 609,575 330,185
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UUNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES ..o (27,992) 96,042 2,141 34,849 112,214 217,254 95,061 312,315
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1995—
NOTE Coooveevrrvrmsiesvonersessssss s 688,304 1,020,772 35,734 182,820 2,678,395 4,606,025 278,789 4,884.814
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS—
NOTE H...cocorrrrcimresnsesrencemsasicss e (25,130) (21.210) (46,340) (46,340 )
FUND BALANCES
JUNE 30, 1996 ..o s $ 635182 0§ 1095604 37875 3 217,662 5 2790609 § 4776939 $ 373850 $ 5,150,789

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES—
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) General Fund Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds ........covvecevererceenennnn, $ 15394900 § 15458763 $ 63,863 $ 1,036,394 1,029,085 5 (7.309)
Lottery receipts .. e e 808,391 856,428 48,037
Liquor store proﬁts transfer ............ 42,000 42,000 et - AU e
Licenses and fees .....ccoceeeevevvvnnee. 65,100 68,665 3,563 497.200 506,055 8,855
Fines, penaities and interest............ 23,700 21,059 (2641) e ceen
Departmental services .....c..ccevu.. 1,053,080 1,053,080 e 45,422 45,422 s
Miscellaneous ..o oveeeeeceeceeecrrrsereeeens 226,000 231,051 5,051 86,594 86,712 118
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS ............. 16,804,780 16,874,618 69,838 2,474,001 2,523,702 49,701
Federal Programs ..........ccoooocvvervirivinnncn. 8,408,952 8,054,824 (354,128) 879,509 605,456 {274,053)
TOTAL REVENUES. .......ccocovieciririnns 25,213,732 24,929,442 (284,290 ) 3,353,510 3,128,158 (224,352 )
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General 2OVEmMMENt ...........oecevvveveresvarenene. 1,424 012 1,404,284 20,628 535,253 531,769 3,484
Protection of persons and property ........... 1,997 497 1,973,448 24,045 251,850 247,759 4,191
Public health and welfare ..., 5,948,067 5,937,468 10,599 601,928 596,553 5,375
Public education .....ueeceeecrceneecenseenens 7,330,789 7,288,552 42237 1,498 1,413 85
Conservation of natural resources ............ 106,336 105,967 369
Economic development and assistance ... 226,003 217,234 8,769 e e ceee
Transportation ........ccceveeeeeeeenrennne. 298,560 289,055 9,505 1,175,509 1,170,175 5,334
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS ... 17,332,164 17,216,008 116,156 2,566,138 2,547,669 18,469
Federal Programs ........ 8,408,952 8,054,824 354,128 879,509 605,456 274,053
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..o 25,741,116 25,270,832 470,284 3,445,647 3.153,125 292,522
REVENUES OVER (UNDER}
EXPENDITURES ....cooevoemieeercrecennn. (527.384) (341,350) 185,994 (92,137 ) (23.967) 68,170
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior year 1apses ... vcemeeenencnenescees 88,211 88,211 51,066 51,066
Transfer to Tax Stab1llzat1on Reserve
Fund ... e (27,573 (27.573)
Increase in budgeted revenues ....oeee.eee.... 69,838 - (69,838)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES ... tieeie e eerenenanas 158,049 60,638 (97.411) 51,066 51,066
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES —NOTE M .............. (369,335) (280,752 ) 88,583 (41,671) 27,099 68,170
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS), AS )
RESTATED, JULY 1, 1995 —NOTE M 437,001 437,001 258,207 258,207
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUNE 30,1996 .. [SSIUIOIOTORIIUIRURR. 67,666 % 156,249 § 88,583 $ 217,136 285,306 $ 68,170

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1996
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o College Totzl
. Fiduciary and {Memorandum
{Expressed in Thousamds) Governmental Proprietary Fund— University Only)
Funds Funds NoteI Funds Component Units
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D s 89,285 $ 76.498 b3 55 5 84.796 S 250634
Cash with fiscal agents—-Note D 659 22,282 e . 22941
Ternporary investments—NOoIE D oot s 206.738 2,145,865 1,207.290 88.835 3.648,728
Long-term inv its—Note D 130,364 185,893 36.850.057 318,941 37,485,255
Receivable. net:
Accounts 42 21,117 s 29412 50.571
ACCTUED TETESE corrvererreereemeos s seam st srssemssnassmssmsemss snsmss 3833 69.002 214467 e 287.302
Notes and Loans—NOte G ..o cesssssasiessssssssseessssnssseeses 1.544 5.041.173 28.688 5,071,405
L6258 TEMAI—NOIE G <.oereeemsece e oo eeeensreb bbbt st s psr s smss s 2.895,824 14,157 U . 2910,021
Pension contributions ceen . 354.999 . 354.99%
Other e 5171 6,568 11,739
Due from other funds—Note H 172 s 140,703 140,875
Due from primary govenment—Note H ... incenmemsneissninns e 4,031 728 e 4,759
Due from other governments—Note F 134 60,855 15 AN 61,004
Inventory 6,675 Ces 5117 11.792
Fixed assets—Note E 3.281.263 13,776 752,094 4,047,133
Less: accumulated depreiation ... oo ie s s e (1,426,235} (7.965) {229,108 ) ( 1,663,308 )
Other assets 22 70,364 446,500 36.756 353,642
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of otherbonds ........covvviress 745900 74.500
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
OFRET BONAS 1. eeereeeeeeeecacs cermeesssseseemoems sssseessescemesres s st ek s e e s e 2.895,824 2,895,824
Other general long-term obligaticns 210 210
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER BPEBITS § 6209379 5 9573152 $ 39,085.093 $ 1,262,802 $ 56,220,426
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities: :
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities s 11,146 $ 167.061 3 60,443 $ 112,967 3 351687
Invesiment purchases PAYADIE ..........cvceoeemimmecmieisre sttt e satsass s s s e 785588 e 785,588
Cbligations under securities lending e 4.502,453 cee 4,502 453
Due to other funds-—Note H e 172 - 140,703 146,875
Due to primary government—Note H 1 38,927 1,730 8,000 48,058
Due to other governments 81 16,711 e e 16,792
Deferred revenue ) 2.895.824 51,083 5.198 32,178 2,984,284
Notes payable—Note J 47,402 500.710 . 548,112
Demand revenue botds payable—Note J ......ccemm s e 571.000 e 571,600
Other liabilities 351 259,762 361,541 621.654
Bonds payable—Note K 2,970,724 e 2970724
Revenue bonds payable-—Note K e 4,863,272 N 4,863,272
Capital lease obligations~—Note K 311375 31LE75
TOTAL EIABILITIES .......ooeoeeeomseneccemmrecemmersssoreemstianpss s sas s 5.925,529 6,468,698 5.355.412 966.565 18.716,204
Eqguity and Other Credits:
Contributed capital~—Note H 1.299.887 e 1,299,887
Invesunent in fixed assets . 216,456 216456
Retained earrings:
Reserved—Note B 1,328,775 1.328.775
Unreserved 475,792 475.792
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 7 e 34,003 34010
PENSTON DENETILS 1.v1veeereremercesseaseresesemmseesssessmsesmsnecsns roreseresrsremer st passtspassnsss s 33,729,681 P 33.729.681
Loans reeeiVable ..o s an s s . .. 30275 30,275
Long-term investments 130,364 F 130,364
Endowment and SIMEIAFr FUNAS c...co.ovivecrnsmmsssnmemiemssnens e srisassss s ceneees e 8.510 8510
Restricted fund balance 6.860 25.090 31.950
Other—Note B 132.752 132,752
Unreserved:
Designated for:
CAPIA] PLOJECIS coeverrerernememmmerserermeecsemttsrirsnss sessoss 180,179 180.179
Debt Service:
Retirement of other bonds ..... 50,822 50.822
OTDEL oo meeeeae e et ssaesa s e AR AR EBA PR rRRE s S r s R R s e 3,263 il 3.263
Undesignated (deficit}—NOIe C .....o..ooiiiesnnerereciense s s e e 2.35% { 150.849 ) (148494 )
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 373,850 3.104,454 33,729.681 296,237 37.504.222
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS oo $ 6299379 S 8573152 $ 39,085.093 5 1262802

$ 56220426

— See notes 1o financial staternents. —
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: COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
- Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partuership Aunthority Authority Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D ...overerireeerecrrietieeires e B 19 3 1 $ 3,089 $ 86,166 $ 8957285
Cash with fiscal agents ... S e 659 e 659
Temnporary investments—Note D ... 86,251 7,541 el 112,946 206,738
Long-term investments—Note I ....ocovvveviviivcvnen e 25,351 el e 104,973 130,364
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS it vesns e e 5 R 37 A 42
Accrued interest ............. 741 39 e 3,053 . 3,833
Notes and Loans—NGIE G ...ovvvvvvvvcvsvieeseneeeen 1,544 v e e 1,544
Lease rental —NOte G ..o 328,430 . e 2,567,394 2,895,824
Due from other governments .. e e 134 e 134
Oher ASSEIS ..o cereemeenerene e e remne e seemene e senea e S 22 R 22
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of other bonds ... 1,535 e e 73,365 74,900
Amounts to be provided for the retirernent of:
Other bonds ... eeeeeeeee e e 328.430 A . 2,567.394 2,895,824
Other general long-term obligations ................... 210 N e s 210
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS ....... $ 772,556 b3 7,581 $ 3,951 $ 5,515,291 $ 6,299,379
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities .............. § 4,825 kY 6,250 3 15 $ 56 $ 11,146
Due to pritnary government—Note H ..coeeeeeeee 1 R R e 1
Due to other governments .........cocooceeeeeecceccccvnne el 81 A A 81
Deferred revenue ............ 328,430 Cee e 2,567,394 2,895,824
Notes payable—Note J ... 47402 e RN RN 47,402
Other kabilities ..o.vecvronnicrn et 351 B e e 351
Bonds payable—Note K ..o 326,965 . e 2,640,759 2,970,724
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... 710,974 6,331 15 5,208,209 3,925,529
Fund Balance:
o Reserved for:
. ERCUMDIANCES ..o vveeeeeevessvsisaserasssoncssessererneeas e 7 B e 7
b LONg-1EIT INVESHMIENS .ooreeeeeoe e 25,391 . . 104,973 130,364
Restricted fund batance .......cooveeveeiecicccnecen 1,977 e R 4,883 6,860
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital PYOJECLS ..o e 32,240 e . 147,939 180,179
Debt Service:
Retirement of other bonds ... 1,535 e 49 287 50,822
OERET (et A . 3,263 . 3,263
Undesignated ............cccoooovimeninnesssccsennns 439 1,243 673 . 2,355
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ....ccccoveeieenee 61,582 1,250 3,936 307,082 373,850
L
f TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES ... verecmecceceeeee B 772,556 $ 7,581 % 3,951 $ 5,515,201 $ 6299379

— See notes to financial siatements. — -
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES .
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - y
Governmental Funds—
Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 g
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA N
{Expressed in Thousands} : }
o
Pennsylvania -
State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational h
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities {
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total =
REVENUES:
Charges for sales and SEIVICES ..o.ovvericriececncresicrinnr. B 931 3 64 5 7.785 3 AN $ 8,780
Investment inCOIME ....c.coneeveeennes 7.317 359 125 17,957 25,758
Lease rental principal and interest ... . 36,021 A e 195,465 231,486
OHEE .o ctvm s ssssasense e sse s s naresenas 735 e 28 14,054 14,817 :
14
TOTAL REVENUES i 45,004 423 7,938 227476 280,841 i
EXPENDITURES:
Protection of persons and Property ..........oeecvrcrvenee RN 4,002 e 4,002
Public education .....ecivcceieneie et fereseens 1,439 e e 165 1,604
Economic development and assistance ... . e 36,066 e . 36,066 .
Capital outlay ....... 57,145 364,872 422,017 o
Debt Service: Y
Principal TEUIETIENL c.vvuussessessrermessrsssasrsssseersseararsees 23,290 . - 146,235 169,525 -
Interest and fiscal charges ...ovveevcvvceeveveceececiiinns 23,563 e - 138,578 162,141
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .....coooorrreeececerrirene 105,437 36,066 4,002 649,850 795,355 :
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ... crirarirnresrisssnasisenssans (60,433) (35,643 ) 3,936 (422,374 ) {514,514 |
S
L
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds ............ eerneene e eanaanane 36,255 e e 1,205,199 1,241,454 R
Refunding bond proceeds ... . e R e R - ‘$
Operating transfers in—Note H ... . 72,678 R e 779,218 851.8%¢6 Iy
Operating transfers our—Note H ... I— (72,678 e RPN (779,218 ) (851,896 )
Operating transfer from primary government— .
L (e e 36,000 R e 36,000
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent........ooeeunnne e A e (667,879 ) (667,879 )
NET OTHER FINANCING SQURCES ............ 36,255 36,000 et 537,320 609,575 o
REVENUES AND OTHER SQURCES tl
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES ... csrscssssnmenans (24,178) 357 3,936 114,946 95,061
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1995 .ooeccoco e 85,760 ' 893 e 192,136 278,789
i
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,1996 .........cccccconceene.. 3 61,582 $ 1,250 3 3,936 3 307082 $§ 373,850

[——

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1996
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industriat Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Envestment
(May 31, 1996) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash—Note D 3 71,431 s 1 3 o 3 4,162 3 904 S 76,498
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D ... e 973 e 21,240 69 22,282
Temporary investments—Note 1D .. 568,403 71,135 680,160 679,735 146,432 2,145,865
Long-term invesmems—Note D ... e 86.978 80,465 18,449 . 185,893
Receivables, net:
ACCOUDTS ... 13,008 e P 8,109 . 217
Accrued interest ... 1,281 3,622 P 61,949 2,150 69,002
MNotes and Loans——Note G ., JURN 522,132 2,172,045 1,360,726 986,270 5,041,173
Lease rental—Note G 14,197 o e e 14,157
Due from other funds e 98 e 74 172
Due from primary government—Note H ., 4,031 e e 4,031
e from other governments—Note F P 38,078 22,777 60,855
Inventory ....... 6,675 A e ceen e 6,675
Fixed assets—Noie E 3,130,211 e 6,914 143,934 24 3.281,263
Less: aceumulated depreciation .. (1,380,954) . {3,309) (41,815) (157) { 1,426,235 )
0711153 13- 17,841 11,238 11,704 18,978 10.803 70,364
TOTALASSETS ......ooeecereorreceeiestesrs e enissnnnees 5 2,431,727 5 710276 $ 2,948,078 5 2313545 $ 1,169,526 $ 9,573,152
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites ... s 72,280 8 326 s 47,447 % 43,860 S 3,148 5 167,061
5 Due to other funds 74 98 172
: Due to primary government—Note H 4,076 e 37 979 33,835 38,927
' Due to other governments AN e 16,709 z - 16,711
Deferred revenue .. e e e 51,083 e 31,083
Notes payable—Note J ..o e s 40,210 460,500 e 500,710
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J ............ e s e 571,000 e 571,000
Other liabilities ..o vecriceerrene 17,101 9,728 177,396 35,537 e 259,762
Revenue bonds payable—Note K .. 1,184,774 342214 2,284,901 837,785 213,598 4,863,272
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o 1,278,231 352,268 2,550,065 2,037,453 250,681 6,468,698
Equity:
Contributed capital~Note H .......coccouveeerrer i 180,067 226,350 1,960 e 891,510 1,299 887
Retained earnings: .
Reserved—Note B ... 973,429 e 122,460 232,886 e 1,328,775
Unreserved AN 131,658 273,593 43,206 27,335 475,792
TOTALEQUITY ..o 1,153,496 358,008 398,013 276,092 918,845 3,104,454
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ............ 3 2,431,727 & 710,276 $ 2,948,078 % 2,513,545 5 1,169,526 5 9,573,152

— See notes 1o financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
f ' Proprietary Fund Type
ennsylvania
Pennsyl
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Devefopment Finance Assistance Envestment
(May 31, 1956) Authority Agency Agency Authority “Total
OPERATING REVENUES: 7 .
Sales ANd SETVICES Lovvi v vrversesesessememmmm et s e seces 3 308,608 3 . $ 24,990 5 315,105 $ 1,081 $ 749,784
Investment income ... e 11,349 31,047 165.741 5,600 213,737
Interest on notes and 10ans ........ccooceceeeereeerceercensrevinse . I 17,753 158,358 s 17,167 193,278
ORET 11vesurarsisarerseamsssasarssiemsienesssssinemssmmmmase s soemsmssesnssms s smras e e s smnssess sesses 14,078 1.385 6.186 612 25 22,286
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ... e 322,686 30.487 320,581 431,458 23,873 1,179,085
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cast of sales and services 162,150 2,898 129.512 628.039 2,591 925,190
INLETESE BXPENSE w1vvviiisreisrisssrirsiertisimesansans st semss e s smsssmsss s sasenas R 19,747 148,072 122,468 11,32} 301,608
Depreciation 157,983 e 387 14.740 14 173,124
Provision for uncoflectible aCCOURIS it s s cea 2,255 21,708 (707 23,256
Gther 550 550
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . .ocoeoceo e oo et e st cemnmnssessnsines 320,133 24,900 300,229 765.247 13,219 1,423,728
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ..o 2,553 5587 20,352 {383,789} 10,654 (244,643 )
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income ........ 26,380 26,380
IRLETESE EXPENEE ...ooremeectesieecirie s ss bt it s s s bR b e b s e st s a b s e peaen (58,324 ) (58,324)
Q4] company franchise tax 40,708 s 40,708
Other 3913 3,913
NONOPERATENG REVENUES, NET 8,764 3913 12,677
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS 11,317 5,587 20,352 (279876 ) 10,654 (231.966)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating wansfers from primary government—Note H 18,000 282.877 300,877
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS e s 11,317 5,587 38,352 3.001 10,654 68,911
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment
OF BB ovrrerirrrrrirsrarcrnsreece s e emssesne e seeas e ms s s (151) (151)
NETINCOME ... smessissmsiss sestres s rssssosmsasstsssss rssmseses 11,317 35,587 38,201 3,601 10,654 68,760
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1995 962,112 126,071 357,852 273,091 16,581 1,735,807
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1996 ........ccconncesivncvnnrnns $ 973,429 5 131,658 5 396,053 3 276,092 5 27,335 $ 1,804,567

— See notes to financial statements. —
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: COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
'~ Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

i COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

i (Expressed in Thousands) . . Pennsylyania .
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commissien Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1996) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total

| CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:

' Operating InCOme (JOSS} v rursvrenrerssssssinsens sessssnrmeneres 5 2,553 B 5,587 3 20,352 $ (283789) 5 10,654 3 (244,643)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

- to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciaiion ... 157,983 e 387 14,740 14 173,124
Provision for uncollectible accounts .. 2,255 21,708 e (707) 23,256
NONopesating revenues ............ococeeeen. e e 3,913 e 3.913
Reclassification of investment income ... {11,349) (31,047 ) (165,741) {5,600) {213,737 )
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables 3,037 (49.292) (126,132} 223,330 (99.839) (48,896}
Increase in due from other funds ........ {98 (74) (172)
Increase in due from primary government ... (734) R e e A (734)
Decrease (increase) in due from other
governments e A e 352 (22,777) (22,425)
Decrease in inventory ... 759 e ceen e R 759
Decrease (increase) in other current assels . 1,232 (868) 815 {591 (43) 545
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (3,001} {8) 484 4,166 (39) 1,602
Increase in due to other funds et e 74 e 98 172
Increase {decrease) in due to primary
government 77 R (6) 115 {1,978 (1,792)
Increase in due to other governments . e . 6,205 e 6,205
Increase in deferred revenue .............. R e - 3,127 e 3,127
Increase {decrease) in other current liabilides ...... 2,592 (255 ) 6,860 (700 ) e 8,497
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS .o 161,945 {39,517) (126,955 ) 38,916 (130,945 ) (66,556 )
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 164,498 {53.930) (106,603 ) (194,873 ) (120,291} (311,199)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations ... e 343,028 215932 e 558,960
Principal paid on debt obligations .................. (10,738 ) ( 150,637 ) (235.429) A {396,804 )
Operating transfers from primary government .. . 18,000 282,877 P 300,877
Decrease in contributed capital (1,503 ) RN P (1,503 )
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... . \ {10,738 ) 208,888 263,380 e 461,530
CASH FLOWS FROM CAFPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations ... e e e et 500 500
. Principal paid on debt obligations ... (21,112) e e . (6,912) (28,024)
[ Interest paid on debt obligations .. (58.324) e - . . (58,324)
) Increases in contributed capital 9,001 . e e 148,632 157,633
Decrease in contibuted capital ... e R - e (2,895) (2.895)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ... ( 183,077) . (894 ) (6,733) (36) (190,740)
il company franchise tax 40,708 RN e RN e 40,708
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..., (212,804 ) e (894} {6,733) 139,289 {81,142)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (588337) {12,717.197) (584,0i4) (2,391,353 ) (639,387) (16,920,488 )
Proceeds for sale and matyrities of investments 678,038 12,770,894 448,583 2,165,687 615,324 16,678,526
Envestment income ... 26,380 11,349 31,047 165,741 5,600 240,117
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES .o 115,881 65,046 (104.384) (59,925 {18.463) (1.845)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ............. 67.575 378 (2,993) 1,849 535 67,344
CASH, JULY 1, 1995 .. 3.856 596 2,993 23,553 438 31,436
CASH, JUNE 30, 1996 ..o . % 71.431 5 974 3 ceee 5 25,402 § 973 $ 98780

There were no material investing, capial and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

— See notes o financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS L
Pension Trust Fund — Discretely Presented Component Unit ~ For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

| —

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYEVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

!—-'Public School Employes’ Retirement System ]

Postemployment
Pension Healthcare Total

ADDITIONS:

.
A
I

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments ..., $ 3,817,082 $  (49) $ 3,816,500 -
................ 1,308,753 48,133 1,356,886 i

1,324,220 2,482 1,326,702
Transfer from primary government — Note H ... 2,491 R 2,491 0Ty

Pension contribUtions .........coccveceeeieceisenesisesaaeeimneennes

InVesStmEnt IMCOMIE woueeeeeicecaecanaessesemtaesaeeemstesmmeennes

TOTAL ADDETIONS ... 6,452,546 50,123 6,502,669 -

DEDUCTTIONS: . i

Benefit payments et oLttt et ere s eee e ere e 1,504,120 28,413 1,532,533 E
Refunds of contributions ................. . 14,124 .. 14,124 =
AdRINISITATVE EXPEISES L. oot isisssieriisssssiieceie st estsessastsbes se et emsasece s sessensstasemesassssererans 22,111 601 22,712 7y
Transfer to primary government — NOIe H .ottt 4,121 cae 4,121 Hil

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS ...t eesnensemean 1,544,476 29,014 1,573,490

N CTERSE v 4908070 21,109 4.929,179 )
Fund balance reserved for pension and postemployment healthcare benefits: B ;
JULY 1, 1995, AS RESTATED — NOTE Co...ooiierrmenees e e 28,754,390 46,112 28,800,502 }

JUNE 30,1996 ...t s s s s b s eeene $ 33,662,460 - § 67221 $ 33,729,681

— See notes 1o financigl statemenis, —
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: COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,
- EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

‘ (Expressed in Thousands)
P Unrestricted Restricted Total
REVENUES:
Tuition and fees ............._... 5 386272 3 RN $ 386272
Government grants and conr.racts
State and local ..o 4,150 55,366 59,516
Federal .. DO SUTS OO . 1,988 58,972 60,960
Private rqfts, grants and contracts ............. 3,929 6,559 10,488
Investment income ......... . . . 17,864 223 18,087
Endowment InCoOme .....oceveceeereicre e - 107 456 563
Activities of educational departments ...... 7.633 e 7,633
. Other SOUTCES —..ovvvivivisiriesseereees - 17,443 217 17,660
P : AUXIHACY EDEFPIISES « oo e 130,119 s 130,119
TOTAL REVENUES ..ot e 569,505 121,793 691,298
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EXPENDITURES:
Educational and general:
INSIAUCTION _...coieeee et e er e ar e sbs s 417,088 6,098 423,186
Research 1,115 2,517 3,632
Public service 8,976 16,362 25,338
Academic SUPPOTE .....oovieesvece e e es e 84,710 2,618 §7.328
Student services . 69,239 4,300 73,539
Operations and maintenance of plant ...............o.eeo. 84,405 277 84,682
General institutional SEPPOIt ... 112,781 2,727 115,508
Stdent Ald ..o e 8,203 85,393 93,596
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL .............. 786,517 120,292 506,805
Auxiliary REEIPIISES .o e e rare 116,313 246 116,559
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS ..o 902,830 120,538 1,023,368
MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
Principal and IMerest ..o oo 12,566 et 12,566
QBET 1ottt et e s et e e nan 323 (37) 286
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS ..., 12,889 {37) 12,852
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY
TRANSFERS .. et a e e e e e 915,719 120,501 1,036,220
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND DEDUCTEIONS:
Operating transfers from Primary Government—
NOE H oo resinersssstenvt st e emsn s seerssennn e 381,600 1,705 383,305
Other transfers .ot e (48,168 ) 218 (47,950)
DEQUCTIONS «.cnereererereerceeoneseaseseecesanseressrssessssssess bmmsemens e (2,845) (2,845)
; OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER
: TRANSFERS AND DEDUCTIONS, NET ........... 333,432 (922) 332,510
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN FUND BALANCES $ (12,782) 3 370 $ (12412)

— See notes 1o financial statements. —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A—FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government
(PG). The PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of the Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards
and organizations which are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting
entity includes blended and discretely presented component units. Component units include all
legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define
financial accountability include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing
body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered. The following organizations are included in the financial
reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) ~ The SERS is a public
employe retirement system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting
board members and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS
to provide pension benefits to PG employes. The PG makes essentially all employer contributions
to the SERS; PG employes make almost all of the employe contributions to the SERS (virtually all
PG employes are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for all of the SERS pension
obligations. The SERS is a blended component unit because it provides services and benefits almost
exclusively to the PG.

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA ) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority (HEFA) (Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited
obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities
for school districts and public and private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely
from lease rental payments from the schools. Upon completion of the lease payment requirements
(and satisfaction of bondholders), the title to the constructed or acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA governing boards; nine
high-ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is
able to impose its will. The PG Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA
projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal dependency). Although neither the PG nor
the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease rental payments from schools),
the PG may take certain actions to satisfy the SPSBA and the HEFA bondholders.

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership (Partnership) (Governmental Fund Type) — The Partnership assists
business through interaction of technology development, modernization and training programs.
Industrial resource centers and technology centers, established through the Partnership, also increase
the competitiveness of businesses. Operations of the Partnership are funded by state appropriations
and private contributions; the Partnership may not issue debt. The Partnership works closely with
the Department of Commerce.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The PG appoints all fifteen voting members of the governing board. All Partnership expenditures
must be appropriated annually by the General Assembly.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA} (Governmental Type) — The IFPA assists in the
prevention, discovery, investigation and prosecution of insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through
assessments paid by the insurance industry and through certain criminal and civil fines, penalties
and awards.

The PG appoints six of seven voting members of the IFPA governing board, the Attorney General
serves ex-officio as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the
Section on Insurance Fraud in the Office of Attorney General; this indicates a financial benefit/
burden. The IFPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The
PHEAA makes grants and loans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending
institutions and post-secondary schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA
grant program; the PHEA A issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds
are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for
lending instimtions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA.
A significant PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the
PG is not obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy
bondholders. The PHEAA i1s fiscally dependent, as the Governor must approve the issuance of its
debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHFA makes
loans to eligible individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs
benefit low and moderate-income individuals and families.

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will.
The Governor is required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA
whenever a deficiency exists in the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to
avoid a defanlt on the PHFA debt. This represents a PG moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The
Govemnor must approve the issuance of the PHFA debt.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA
collaborates with local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or
expand the work force, assist targeted econornic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made
at lower-than-market interest rates; the interest rates are based on local unemployment and other
economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan repayments
are used for debt service payments. The PIDA operates closely with the Department of Commerce.

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has
provided contributed capital; “excess” PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The PG is

[

)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A-—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

not obligated for the PIDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) —
The PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities, businesses
and nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking
and waste water systems. The PENNVEST obtains funds throngh Commonwealth general obligation
bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government and contributed
amounts from Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST debt service costs.
The PENNVEST operates closely with the Department of Environmental Protection.

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments.
By issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed
capital, the PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST
debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of
the PENNVEST revert to the Commonweaith.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created to
construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth. Activities are financed
through user tolls and the isszance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through
user tolls. The PTC works closely with the Department of Transportation.

The PG appoints ali voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all contracts
related to turnpike construction and supervise construction. When all the PTC bondholders have
been satistied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve
the issuance of all the PTC debt. The PG is not obligated for the PTC debt, but the PG could take
certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The PSERS was
created to administer and provide pension benefits to public school employes in Pennsylvania. The
PSERS covers almost all such employes. Employer contributions are made by covered, elementary
and secondary school employers with the PG reimbursing each employer at least half their required
annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered employes of higher education institutions
and state-owned schools are shared equally by covered employers and the PG; all covered public
school employes also make contributions,

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting beard members; the seven other members are appointed by
active or retired public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to
making significant contributions to the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and
other pension benefits. This represents a compelling PG financial burden.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was
created to provide instruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen
universities and an administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants
and PG subsidies.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trustees of
universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to
the SSHE. The PG is not obligated for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions to
satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA)—The PEDFA was created
to lend money primarily to businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth.
The PEDFA issues revenue bonds to fund specific projects only and repayments are derived solely
from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to
bondholders beyond amounts received by the Authority from the funded projects. Financial statement
information for the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves non-recourse debt.

The PG appoints all sixteen board members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated
for the PEDFA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution,
the assets of PEDFA revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA)—The PEDA was created to promote the
development of energy sources within the Commonweaith. The PEDA issued revenuze bonds and
lent the proceeds to fund three specific projects. Loan repayments are derived solely from project
revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the PEDA is not obligated to bondholders beyond
amounts received from the funded projects. The PEDA has not issued any debt since 1990. Financial
statement information for the PEDA is not reported because its only activity involves non-recourse
debt.

The PG appoints all nineteen board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must
approve the issuance of Authority debt. The PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG
could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Financial Reports

Audited financial statements for component units are available from the individual organizations.
Interested parties should write to the Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations, Room 207
" Finance Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, to learn how to obtain these reports.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG
appoints all eleven governing board members but is not financjally accountable as there is no
imposition of will, no financial benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS.
Local governments are the only participants in the PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are
variations among different municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financially
responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services
to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement basis. The PMRS is not included in the financial reporting
entity.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG
appoints all seven governing board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of
imposition of will and no financial benefit/burden. The ATPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG.
The operation of the ATPA is funded by an annual assessment paid by companies providing
automobile insurance in the Commonwealth. The PG processes cash receipts and disbursements
for the ATPA,

Joint Venture

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsyivania Employes
Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Comrmonwealth employe
labor unions. The PEBTF establishes and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare
benefits. The PEBTF is administered by a governing board, one half of whose members are each
appointed by the Commonwealth and the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions
control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The
Commonwealth unilaterally pays for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based
on the terms contained in collective bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financially
responsible for making contributions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an
equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the PEBTF. Aside from its obli gation to make
periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not responsible for any obligations of the
PEBTE.

Excluded Organizations

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary
governments, as they are governed by popularly-elected officials.

Secondary vocational-technicat schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered
as potential cornponent units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These
schools may receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint
a voting majority of governing board members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations.
Although various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly influence these organizations, the PG
does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not fiscally dependent on
the PG.

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University,
University of Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and Temple University, were considered as potential
component units. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing board at
each university and provides significant operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence
of the PG appointment of a voting majority and the lack of fiscal dependency, these universities are
excluded from the financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

Fund Acccunting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting
entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related
liabilities and equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the
Commonwealth, funds are established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commonwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the
primary government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumuiation of resources, principally transfers from other
funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public
organizations (other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing
basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State
Workmen's Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 and the State
Stores Fund for its fiscal year ended June 25, 1996.

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on
a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds. The State Employes’
Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund and the Deferred Compensation Fund and the INVEST
Program for Local Governments, Agency Funds, are included for their fiscal years ended December
31, 1995.

Account Groups
General Fixed Assets Account Group—Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or constructed
for use by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted for in Proprietary

Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—Accounts for all long-term obligations of the
Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University Funds.

bond




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Component Units include Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and College
and University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but afe considered part of the
reporting entity. The College and University Funds are as follows:

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities, which
comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with the accounting guidance and
reporting practices applicable to governmental colleges and universities, as outlined in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of Colleges and Universities,
and pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Accordingly, the
College and University Funds are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds——Unrestricted and University Designated—Account for economic resources of
the institution which are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
universities and have not been designated by the governing body for any other purpose.

Current Funds—Restricted—Account for resources received from donors or other outside
agencies that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds—Account for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds—Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds and quasi-
endowment funds.

Endowment Funds—Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a condition
of the gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained inviolate and in
perpetuity for investment. Investment earnings may be added to the principal or expended
for restricted or unrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds—Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of which may
be expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds—Account for resources that the governing board of an institution,
rather than an outside source, has determined will be retained and invested. Since this is an
internal designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend the principal of these
funds at any time.

Plant Funds—Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional properties
and to service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed assets and the
source from which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds—Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of an agent
for distribution to designated beneficiaries.

Component Units~—Account for certain affiliated organizations for which the Board has oversi ght
responsibility.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency funds
.are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus only current assets
and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases {i.c., expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available spendable resources.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust funds are
recognized in the year that they become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal year-end) to
pay current fiscal year liabilities. The Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue sources that are
both measurable and available:
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NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Sales and use taxes, cigaretle taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investiment incorne, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods and
services.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
fiscal year the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures
for principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless resources have
been provided for payment carly in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are
reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when the items are
used. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions are
reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources. Budgetary encumbiances are not reported as expenditures.

The enterprise, internal service {Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the flow
of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus
all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund
equity (i.e., net total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year
incurred. Under GASB Staternent 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt
the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989,

The College and University Funds, a component unit, are reported using the “financial flow” (spending)
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with existing
authoritative accounting and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and judgments
by managerment.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary): The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit a
budget annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly
may add, change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Govemor, but the Governor retains veto
power over the individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce individual
appropriations, but may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be overridden only by a two-thirds majority
of each House of the General Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by the
General Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the Governor,
plus (less) the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for constitutionaily
authorized debt service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authority level). Encumbrances
and expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between departments and any
supplemental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered and
unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the subsequent
vear. On the budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year
end for the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and
use taxes and personal income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to
the Motor License Fund, which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but not collected at fiscal year
end. Also, estimated encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct
expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable against current year appropriation authority
but expended in the subsequent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the subsequent
year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year appropriation authority. A separate document, “Status
of Appropriations” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 reports the level of legal control at the appropriation
level for specific departmental programs and functions, and is available from the Commonwealth’s Office of
the Budget.
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NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continned)

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen's Compensation Administration

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $113.6 million in supplemental appropriations
approved during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996.

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such
Special Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by the
Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects.
Appropriations for capital projects normally remain in effect until the completion of each project unless
modified or rescinded.

Budget revenues in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates
while expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented
on the budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation of the
differences between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code,-cash balances of most Commonwealth funds
are pooled by the Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for
receipt and disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial
institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit.

Temporary Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash within twelve months or less are reported
as temporary investments. These investments inclede cash equivalents, which have ori ginal maturity dates of
three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value which would result from changes in interest rates. No investments which could be defined
as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the Statement of Cash Flows: therefore, net changes in cash
only are displayed. Temporary investments are stated at cost except for investments of the State Employes’
Retirement System, the Public School Employes’ Retirement Systern, the Deferred Coempensation Fund and
the Insurance Liquidation Fund, which are stated at fair value typically determined using quoted market
prices.

Practically all primary government funds and certain component unit funds participate in Treasury short-term
investment pools. Each participating fund earns investment income based on its prorata share of invested
amounts, calculated on a daily basis, and paid on a monthly basis. In addition, some funds report their own
separate investment portfolio purchased through the Treasury Department and therefore receive all income
earned on these investments.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected (o be realized in cash after twelve months are reported as
long-term investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost for equity securities and at amortized cost for
debt securities, except for investments of the State Employes’ Retirement System, the Deferred Compensation
Fund and the Insurance Liquidation Fund, which are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on published
market prices, quotations from national securities exchanges and securities pricing services, or by the respective
fund managers for securities which are not actively traded. Other investments are valued based on appraisals
or the present value of projected future income.

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement type grants are recorded as
revenues when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred.
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NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College and
University Funds. These inventories are valned at the lower of cost or market (first-im, first-out) for Proprietary
and weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types, inventories are
accounted for on the purchases method.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on general
fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were acquired
or constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the Commonwealth’s
General Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed by the SSHE subsequent
to June 30, 1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE debt are also reported in the
Commonwealth’s General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment is used to conform to the
enabling legislation for the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated
historical cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives.
The following lives are used:

BUIldINES e sttt eriss s s e s e s e s men e s 10-50 years
Improvements other than buildings ..., 5-50 years
Furniture, machinery and equipment.............. JUTOTOTU VISP 3-25 years

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Insurance Loss Liability: The reported insurance loss liability of the State Workmen's Insurance Fund (SWIF),
an Enterprise Fund, is based on historical claims experience. Several assumptions were used to determine the
liability amount, including the use of a 5.5 percent discount rate. The 5.5 percent rate represents a change from
prior years, during which the discount rate was 4 percent. As a result of this change in assumption, the reported
insurance loss liability has decreased $130 million at December 31, 1995. Further, in determining the liability
amount, extensive changes in statutory benefits due to the passage of Act 44 in 1993 and changes in claims
management practices adopted by SWIF were considered. SWIF management expects these legislative and
operational changes to substantially reduce claim duration, the utilizatton of medical services, and inflation of
medical costs. At present, SWIF does not have a significant amount of empirical data to measure the expected
cost reduction for these changes. However, the estimated effect was incorporated in the actuarial reserve
analysis through adjustments to the historical data. These adjustments were based on limited actual information.
The length of time required for the actual insurance loss liability to be determined and the uncertainty regarding
whether the adjusted data will be supported by future claim experience, including payments, must be considered
when evaluating the reported insurance loss hability.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/
hospital benefits, employe disability and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in
Note O.

Compensated Absences: Employes earn annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid.
A maximum of 45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year Employes are paid for
accumulated annual leave upon termination or retirement.
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NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employes earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. A maximum of 300 days may be carried
forward at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employes that meet service, age or disability requirements
are paid in accordance with the following schedule:

Days Availabie Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13

Accumulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds and
Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprictary,
Pension Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year earned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service
costs over varying periods not exceeding 20 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal
year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Reserves and Designations: Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a
specific future use or are not appropriable for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $72.5 million, is applicable to a demand loan to the
State Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $2.3 million, both
Enterprise Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million and the Pharmaceutical Assistance
Fund for $2.0 million, both, Special Revenue Funds. For its fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 the State
Workmen's Insurance Fund has reported an advance from the General Fund in the amount of $2 million.

The amount reserved for advances in the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is applicable
to a $3 million advance to the Air Quality Improvement Fund, a Special Revenue Fund.

The $29.8 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the General Fund at June 30, 1996 includes $3.1 million
for advances to organizations outside the financial reporting entity and $26.7 million for other receivables.

The $111 thousand reported as “Reserved for other” in the Special Revenue Funds at June 30, 1996 pertains
to reserves for other receivables in the State Lottery Fund and the Nursing Home Loan Development Fund in
the amount of $8 thousand and $103 thousand, respectively.

The $132.8 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely presented
component unit, at June 30, 1996 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in subsequent fiscal
periods.

Reserved retained earnings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for insurance claims relatin g
to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, reserves for contingencies for the Rehabilitation Center Fund, and
equipment replacement reserves for other enterprise funds. Reserved retained earnings reported for Discretely
Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds are provided principally for the retirement of revenue bonds
relating to the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, student loans relating to the Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency, and housing loans relating to the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency. At June 30,
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1996 the Commonwealth has included the following reservations of retained earnings for the Enterprise Funds
and the Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds (expressed in thousands):

Discretely

Presented
Primary Component

Government Unit

State Workmen’s Insurance Bund ...oooooovooooeeeeeeeeeeeeenee $ 65,620 $ e
Pennsylvania Turnpike COMIMISSION .ovvuiveeceieeeeceicrceeeeemeae ce 973,429
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .............. Ce 232,886
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ...oooooooviiionceenee. R 122,460
Other Enterprise FURAS ....coovoieeii et 6,919 ceen
TORL .o e $ 72,539 $ 1,328,775

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources. At
June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “Designated—Other” for the General
Fund and Special Revenue Funds (expressed in thousands):

General Fund:

Tax stabiliZAtION .....coooeeeeieeree v ree e e © § 184,413
ReStriCted TEVENUE ........ooeeeeveveveeirerenreeers s enesses s anenes 170,831
Continuing PrOSTAITIS ..eevecvrreiriersinesssssersssesrerssnresssses 26,539

Total General Fund ..o $ 381,783

Special Revénue Funds:

Land reclamation ..o ereeeee e e $ 24,749
Recycling programs .........., erer e e e 2,928
Solid waste gTants ...........o..cormrvrrecceme e e 879
81 T=) U SO 2,416

Total Special Revenue Funds ...l $ 30972

In addition, the Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported $3,353 thousand as
*Designated—Other” for future worker’s compensation self-insurance claims.

The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority, a discretely presented governmental fund component unit, reporied
$3,263 thousand as “Designated—Other” for future program grants.

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federat
Government.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred to as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was created in
July of 1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits, and
promote greater continuity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax stabilization
Teserve is not to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revenues of the General Fund. Revenue is provided through
an appropriation by the General Assembly for transfer to this fund. Whenever the Governor determines a need
to transfer moneys from this fund, a request for an appropriation is made to the General Assembly. An
appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members of the General Assembly. Also,
Act 35 of 1991 provides that in any fiscai year in which there is a surplus of operating funds in the General
Fund, as certified by the Budget Secretary, fifteen percent of such surplus shall be deposited into this fund. In
addition, the proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets of the Commonwealth are also to be
deposited into this fund. For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is reported as a designation in the General
. Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:
Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers)—Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred
as “Operating transfers in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers out” by the disbursing
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NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

fund. Legally required transfers between primary government and component unit organizations are

reported when incurred as “Operating transfers from component unit” by the recipient organization

and “Operating transfers to primary government” or “Operating transfers to component unit” by the
- disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund
for another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures
in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers—Nonroutine or nonrecuring transfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance.

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions)—Charges or collections for services rendered by
one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses
of the disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1996 is presented in
Note H.

New Accounting Pronouncements: Effective July 1, 1995, the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Statement
24, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance.” Equal amounts
of revenues and expenditures are being reported in the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, for pass-through grants. Equal amounts of revenues and expenditures are being reported in the
General Fund for food stamp coupons issued during the fiscal year. Food stamp coupon balances held at fiscal
year end are reported as an asset and offsetting deferred revenue. The Commonwealth is not the beneficiary of
any on-behalf payments and has not changed its accounting based on its role as a paying government.

The Public School Employes Retirement System, a discretely presented pension trust component unit, has
early adopted GASB Statement 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans,” Statement 26, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Healthcare Plans Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans,” and Statement 28, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Securities Lending Transactions (see Note C).”

GASB Statement No. 25 required a change in the PSERS’ financial statement format. GASE Statement No.
235 also requires plan investments to be recorded at their fair value. GASB Statement No. 26 has requirements
similar to GASB Statement 25 and requires defined benefit pension plans that administer postemployment
healthcare plans to separately present postemployment healthcare plan net assets and changes in postemployment
healthcare plan net assets. GASB Statement No. 28 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards
for securities lending transactions. GASB Statement No. 28 requires that securities lent and collatera) received
on securities lent be recorded as assets on the statement of plan assets with a corresponding liability being
recorded equal to the amount of collateral received.

Totals—Memorandum Only: The “Totals (Memorandum Only)” columns represent an aggregation of the
combined financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical
purposes. These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available
to or used by the Commonwealth. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of the totals.
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NOTE C—FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS/RESTATEMENTS

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$286,026 at June 30, 1996. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance of $138,000 at June 30, 1996.
Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $433,215, designations for Capital Projects
of $70,480 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $286,026, for a total combined fund batance of
$217,669 at June 30, 1996 (amounts in thousands).

The Minority Business Development Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reported deficit retained earnings of $30,776 thousand
at June 30, 1996.

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, reported a current funds unrestricted fund
balance deficit of $241,055 (in thousands) at June 30, 1996.

The reported net assets of the Public School Employes” Retirement System, a discretely presented pension trust
fund component unit, have increased by $3,778,693 and are being restated from $25,021,809 to $28,800,502 (amounts
in thousands) as of June 30, 1995 due to adoption of GASB Statements 25 and 26, which required a change in
reporting investments from cost to fair value.

1
o
i
i




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Authority for deposits and investments: The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301.1 and 505
of the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, PL. 343, No, 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must be held in insured
depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The Treasury Department may invest in direct
obligations of the U.3. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One” by
Moody’s Investors Service or the equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Investors Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvania
banks or savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Government obligations that are held by the Treasury Department
at the Federal Reserve Bank; banker’s acceptances; and up to a maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment
(other than common stock) not otherwise specifically authorized. The Treasury Department may also participate in reverse repurchase agree-
ments.

The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated short and long term investment pools to maximize efficiency, liquidity and vield for
Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report amounts invested in such pools as temporary and/or long term investments; the pools
themselves are not financially reported. The Treasury Department has also established an investment pool for local governments. Although local
governments are not included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity, this particular pool, the INVEST Program for Local Govern-
ments, is reported as an agency fund.

The deposit and investment policies of certain component units are established by authority other than the Fiscal Code. Enabling statutes gener-
ally provide deposit and investment authority for component units. Further, specific bond and trust indentures, as well as formal govemning board
resolutions, provide deposit and investment requirements. Allowable investments of component units do not significantly differ from those
investments of the Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Employes’ Retirement System
and the Public School Employes’ Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in common and preferred stocks, corporate and foreign
bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years. These two Funds also participate in a securities lendin ¢ program, sponsored
by the Treasury Department, and utilize financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. Specific disclosures about Pension Trust Fund invest-
ments are included in this Note,

Deposits: The Treasury Department controls the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included in the primary government.
Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of their own funds, typically through a trustee. The
following summaries present the amount of primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth) deposits which are
fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the Commonwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits
which are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth's name
(Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the pledging financial institution or the pledging institution's
trust department or agent, but not in the Commonweaith’s name (Category 3) at June 30, 1996 (expressed in thousands).

Primary Government
Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Bank Balance Amount

CASH ceitieee ettt $ 29753 $ 46,597 $ 9,077 $ 85427 $ 124918
Cash with fiscal agents .....ooveeeeoecereereer e 2,094,084 e 18,705 2,112,789 2,086,891
Certificates of deposit and related items .............. 134,118 5,693 14,665 154,476 154,476

The above-listed $154,476 in certificates of deposit and related items is reported as part of primary government temporary investments at June
30, 1996.

Discretely Presented Component Units
Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount

CSH Lt as $ 71,955 $ 68,224 $115,290 $ 255469 $ 250,634
Cash with fiscal agens ... 1,108 e 21,414 22,522 22,941

Investments: The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth)

categorize investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth. Category 1 includes investments that are insured,

registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and

unregistered investments held by the Counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and

unregistered investments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or its agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments
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NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership
interests in mutual funds and in mortgage, real estate and venture capital pools. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed
by the Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1996 (expressed in thousands).

Primary Government

All primary government investments susceptible to credit risk are in category one.

ol
Carrying Market }J
Amount Value
COMMETCIAL PAPET ...oeeremeeereererereare e seerassesssesssemessss s sns s sensss s ssss s sennssees $ 77,346 3 71,697 5
Common and preferred StOCK .ot 2,083,139 2,087,474 ’
Corporate bonds and noies 2,170,374 2,177,965
International equities ........ 1,415,076 1,415,076 S
International fixed income 462,418 462,418 g
REPUICHASE BITEEMENTS —ruvvrrerireresressesessresss ssiestscessssasesememteeeemeeeaeseeeeanes 4,081,648 4,081,647
State and municipal OBHEALIONS ..oovevcvvivivivrerise s 439,840 439,991
U.S. Government obliAtiONS .........co..o.cooovreruecrisee v e reesrssenesseessresonaseens ' 1,900,263 1,937,429 !
U.S. Government agency obligZations ... ..o ceceverceemiccesrrvessasssrnsscsereennns 621,934 627,322
Totals e, 13,252,038 13,307,019

Add investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization: -

Investments owned by the Deferred Compensation Fund
at December 31, 1995:

U] FUNAS 1o oo ses e eee e 294,302 294,802

Investments owned by the State Emploves’ Retirement System (SERS) f
at December 31, 1995:

MOIZAZE LOAMS ..ot esee e emeese e reme s e eaa st cmssaeaeame et aas 448,233 448,233

Mutual funds........ 5,884,775 5,884,775

REa] STAIE ... e crrsn s resrsns s s a s s s s bbb a b 14 e b b ememen e 1,191,322 1,191,322

Venture capital . Feeeerae R AL h b b e b bttt e et 337,121 337,121 .
Securities lent by SERS at December 31, 1995:

ULS. Government SECUIIES ..ol et see e s er e san s 575,893 575,893 :

Corporate bonds and notes ... 38,748 38,748

Common and preferred stocks. 191,413 191,413

International SQUITIES ..o et ee s sb bt sesbannen e 195,804 195,804

International fixed iNCOME ... 60,179 60,179
Investments owned by the Statutory Liguidator Fund at June 30, 1996: ’

ATNMUITIES <..eiiiireiet e eee e a e e saa s s eae et cenem s s meerenssaensssanene et eerans 715 715

LOANS coiriititecte ittt nee s e st 10,571 10,571

MOTZAZE FOANS ... eeeeeeeneii e et cee st ease et enesrassn et ernens 13,202 13,202

Partnership IIETESES oot 508 508

SUDSIAAMIES ....eeie et et e e en e et e 5,038 5,038 i

22,500,362 22,555,343 i

Certificates of deposit and related items .......c..oooeiveeriii e 154,476 154,476

Total temporary and JONg-1erm INVESHMENTS v.veveuivcerrescreeeseeeesiseveensanas $ 22,654,838 $ 22,709,819

The above-listed $154,476 in certificates of deposit are reported as investments at June 30, 1996 but are treated as deposits for a determination of
the level of credit risk associated with them.

The State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 98 percent of the common and preferred stock, 85 percent of
the corporate bonds and notes, 99 percent of international fixed income, 97 percent of mortgage loans and 100 percent of the real estate reported in
the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30, 1996.

—38—




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

Securities Lending:

The State Employes’™ Retirement System (SERS) participates in a securities lendin ¢ program, whereby certain securities are transferred to an
independent broker/dealer in exchange for collateral equal to at least 102 percent of the market value of securities on loan (reverse repurchase
agreements). As the SERS represents only one of several Commonwealth agencies participating in the securities lending program and, as collateral
received by the custodial agent in exchange for SERS securities is not specifically identifiable by agency, the SERS does not record the receipt of
such collateral or the corresponding lability to return collateral via repurchase of securities under loan. Securities under loan, however, are maintained
on the SERS’s financial records and have been classified accordingly in the summary of investment risk. The SERS has minimized its exposure to
credit risk due to broker/dealer default by having the custodial agent determine daily that required collateral meets 102 percent of the market value
of securities on loan. The SERS has not experienced any losses due to credit risk on securities lending activity since implementation of the program.

These financial instruments necessarily involve counterparty credit exposure. The policy of the SERS is to require collateral to the maximum extent
possible under normal trading practices. In the event of counterparty default, the SERS has the right to use the collateral to offset the loss associated
with the replacement of the exchange agreements. Specific credit limits have been established for each counterparty and are monitored and adjusted
daily. The limits are developed based on the counterparty’s creditworthiness, overall industry and other considerations, such as the length and legal
structure of the contract, type of collateral advanced, and historical volatility indicators.

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk:

The SERS uses firancial instruments including forward exchange contracts to manage market exposure. These instruments are integral 1o the asset
allocation, risk management and control systems of the SERS’s investment management strategies and practices, These strategies include holdings
of certain foreign debt and equity securities which amounted to approximately $2.2 billion at December 31, 1995. As a result of these strategies, the
SERS enters into forward contracts as hedges relating to identifiable currency positions. Those instruments are designed to minimize exposure and
reduce risk from foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts which hedge foreign currency assets are
recogaized as incurred. Such amounts effectively offset gains and losses on the foreign currency assets which are hedged. The SERS does not enter
into forward contracts on a speculative basis.

At December 31, 1993, the SERS had contracts maturing through March 27, 1996 to purchase or sell forei gn currency as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Buy at Sell at Net (Payable)

Spot Rate Spot Rate Receivable
Deutschemark .o et e % R $ 113,461 $ (113,461)
French Franc 23,661 52,256 (28,595)
Swedish Kroner .. 147 5,704 (5,557)
Japanese Yem ...o..oeeeeeeeereeenenn 4,438 171,545 (167,107 )
ORET et et st e eeee e e e eee e e o eee e 13,382 115,707 (102,325}
$ 41,628 $ 458,673 $ (417,045)

There were aggregate unrealized gains of approximately $3.9 million and aggregate unrealized losses of approximately $.6 million for these
forward contracts at December 31, 1995,
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NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units iz
l Carrying Amount —
Market
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value D
Commercial PAPET ..o $ RN $ 62,231 $ ... 3 62,231 § 62,231
Common and preferred stock .. 14,945,790 1,345 9 14,947,144 14,947,954
Corporate bonds and notes ... 1,553,857 36,814 . 1,590,671 1,590,615
International equities ............ 4,523,177 e R 4523177 4523177
International fixed income.............. 2,018,851 R B 2,018,851 2,018,851
Mortgage backed securities ............ 2,406,256 133,096 B 2,539,352 2,538,455
Repurchase agreements ... 162,704 542,925 235,662 641,291 941,250
State and municipal obligations ... 151,928 40,254 e 192,182 . 192,551
U.S. Government obligations ..., 781,941 266,719 10,000 1,038,660 1,075,971
U.S. Government agency obligations 344,399 171,613 431 516,443 534,710
Various short-term INVeStMenLS ..o.vvvvrrveriovernensins 629,686 B e 629,686 629,686 :
TOMAlS oo e $ 27,518,589 $1,254,997 $ 246,102 29,019,688 29,055,451 T
Investinents not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investments owned by the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership in Pennsylvania Treasury
investment pool at June 30, I996 ... s 7.541 7.541
Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority at June 30, 1996: Y
Pennsylvania Treasury INVESIIMENE POOE ....oreuiuirercreeeteeeseemeessie et et et s seessermrsnssseresras e sasnas 38,089 38,089 S
IVIONEY IATKEE oo smsrrrs e rees o ceeeos s sesee s ees e 10,171 10,171 A
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at ] I
June 30, 1996: i
IVIONEY IATKED 1. rvvvesvvetemeeecetrcecrtueme e semsarea st emca stk e anssos s eeames s sramaseeses s rea e nom ek emnb s st ataseem aragesn 212,862 212,862
InvestmeRt aZIELIMENtS .ooveevi e eeeanaes 102,245 102,245 o
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool 163,125 163,125
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1996: ’ : :
INVESIMENE AZTEETIIEIIS ..ueiiieiiiiinnisersissiisists s crss st s b st s bam st s e ase e b e bR RS o008 o b REe R sb e e RS Saba s e s e 172,581 172,581 !
IVIULLIA] UIKAS «.eoeeee ettt rs st s s nmse s rmr s s aanan e sassmne e e e e ens s eae s oren s e br e £ 8 e e s 4 n s b rasbam s b mmnan 72,971 72,971 B
Pennsylvania Treasury inVESMENE DOOL ..ottt e cee et sereeene s eeas 3,347 3,347
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in P
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1996 ... &1 81 o
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority at June 30, 1996:
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool ... . 66,907 66,907 -
IVIUBIEL EUTES vorereerrcrmreos oo oo 41,890 41,890 f
Investments owned by the Public School Employes’ Retirement System at June 30, 1996: -
Common and Preferred SEOCK ..o oo senr e s eem e rme e eane e 903,121 903,121
Corporate DONs and NOES ... oo ememe et ccmmememem et esmem s e smem s s e e ene s emesems e e 263,595 265,595 »
Farmland investinents ............ 76,876 76,876 1
Government agency ..... 1,437,431 1,437,431 oA
INternational EQUITIES - o oot bbb e S b A b e n e e e ene 677.4N1 677,491
INtErNatioNal FIXEE INCOITIE «.oue.evecereeeeseereeeem s eeeeeeteee st eetestsabeemanss e semmesbessemeememnesee e emrssmensersnnssssons 1,109,091 1,109,091 o
Limited partnerships .......ococevicieeennn 38,778 38,778 o
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool .............. 218,254 218,254 S
Private placements, fixed income and equity ...... 214,479 214,479 n
REAL BELALE ... eeeceeeeteeeenesssteeseaeensr s snsas s b eeneenseesss memrmeeetbeemse skt enbmmennssessnea somnnsnnssesnnransssonnne st 1,424,249 1,424,249
SECUTTHES IENUIME 1vureceei et ercc s er e ra e ae e em e cermemes e mesmam st car smrmr et e et em e canacnin 4,502,453 4,502,453 U
VENEUTE CAPIEAL 1.vuvuivcverssssrensseresmsicsasmessesrmesas s sesessecs st ereses s s asmsenssseasessoncesasasaacm s masenmss ressasasseraseass 347,000 347,090 -
Investments owned by the State System of Higher Education at June 30, 1996:
IVIIEUAL FUEIAS <. e s etssae st s sba s abesbeabans bebs sessesrsanmnseeanesr e srreTas e oe e e hab e s Raamsaereenneaneennnes 1,822 1,822 1
Pooled COMMON FUNAS uovurvevrreecececmrcree et ertcme et eoesacssrsanmem e seeesee s em st es e s rassanssessranans 4,225 4,225 L
Other SHOTT-LEITI INVESLITIBIILS uuevreearaceonansomremecerrrrsrrrsesrasesssssasamrssoreseesaemssesamsansessmrssesssansssassansson 1,530 1,530 .
TTOBALS -vuveueeereceeeeeeeeeeesasemseeacesisbsss e sns es e s shetencoceneae et bemsate4 e R A oA Sa st s e E e 2oeA T eb s eAemeeeemneme st emonme e aene $ 41,133,983 $ 41,169,746




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS), a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent of the commeon and preferred
stock, 98 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 100 percent of international equities, 100 percent of international fixed income, 95 percent of
mortgage backed securities and 100 percent of the real estate reported in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or
contractual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30, 1996.

Securities Lending:

In accordance with a contract between the Commonwealth and the custodial agent, the PSERS participates in a security lending program. Under
this program, the custodian, acting as the lending agent, lends securities {equities, fixed income issues and money market instruments) to independent
brokers and dealers in exchange for collateral in an amount not less than 102 percent of the fair value of any securities lent except for non-U.S.
corporations for which 105 percent of the fair value is required. Collateral is marked-to-market daily. If the fair value of the collateral held falls
below the minimum guidelines for securities lent, additional collateral is obtained. In lien of securities or cash, the borrower may deliver to the
lending agent irrevocable bank letters of credit as collaterat. If the collateral obtained consists in whole or in part of cash, the lending agent may use
or invest the ¢ash in accordance with reinvestment guidelines approved by the Commonwealth.

As of June 30, 1996, the PSERS had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounis the PSERS owes the borrowers exceed the amounts
the borrowers owe the PSERS. Under the securities lending program, the lending agent provides indemnification to the Commonwealth if the
borrowers fail to return the underlying securities (and the collateral is inadequate to replace the lent securities) or fail to pay income distribution on
them.

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the PSERS or the borrower, and the average term of the loans is one day. The lending
agent may enter into term loans that may last up to 10 days. There were no term loans as of Juné 30, 1996.

Cash collateral is invested in the lending agent’s short-term investment pool. The relationship between the maturities of the investment pool and the
PSERS’s loans is affected by the maturities of the securities loans made by other entities that use the lending agent’s pool, which the PSERS cannot
determine. The PSERS cannot pledge or sell collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults, however the PSERS may seize the assets of
borrowers.

The Commonwealth will earn the greater of 85 percent of income realized from security lending by the lending agent or $1 million per month. The
PSERS’s income from securities lending represents its pro-rata share from participating in the program.

As of June 30, 1996, the fair value of lent securities was $4,392.7 million. The fair value of the associated collateral was $4,502.5 million. The
PSERS’s income, net of expenses, from securities lending was $14.2 million for the year ended June 30, 1996,

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk:

The PSERS enters into 2 variety of financial contracts, which include options, futures, and swaps. The PSERS also enters into foreign exchange
positions, such as forward and spot contracts to hedge foreign currency exposure. The PSERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments.
The contracts are used primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to enhance performance are fully
collateralized, eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The PSERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties
to financial instruments. As the PSERS generally enters into transactions only with high quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty
nonperformance on denvative financial instruments have been incurred. Legal risk is mitigated through careful selection of executing brokers and
an extensive process of review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that future changes in market conditions may
make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed within risk limits set by senior management, by buying or selling instruments
or entering into offsetting positions.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS’s involvement in the various types and uses of derivative financial
instruments and do not measure the PSERS’s exposure to credit or market risks and do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties.
The amounts exchanged are determined by reference to the notional amounts and the other terms of the derivatives.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

The following table summarizes the number of open contracts, and aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS’ derivative financial
instruments at June 30, 1996 (doltar amounts in thousands):

Notional or
Number of contractual
contracts amount

Futures contracts long and shOtt ........ocvvvervrvirmensscnineenssnnen. 25,340 $ 3.437.854
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts 641 7,326,308
Options—calls purchased ... 323,735 469,095
Options—puts purchased .... 2,473,327 414,936
Options——calls 501d oo 172,767 430,694
OPHONS—PULS-SOI ceverremcerereecemeennees s s s ssse 166,630 406,695

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a specific financial instrument at a
predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying) principal value and do not involve an
actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a
counterparty will not pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, o buy or sell the undertying security at a set price during a
period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the underlying security if the option purchaser chooses 1o exercise. The
PSERS only utilizes exchange listed index and equity options and primarily call options which settle in cash. The PSERS has authorized investment
managers to write covered call stock index options up to an amount of $3.6 million.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at an agreed-upon
price and settlement date. These contracis primarily consist of forward contracts. The $7,326 million of foreign currency contracts outstanding at
June 30, 1996 consists of “buy” contracts of $3,613.1 million, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase foreign
currency commitments, and *'sell” contracts of $3,713.2 million, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to sell foreign currencies.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and interest-only strips in part to
maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates. These securities are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result
from a drop in interest rates. The fair market value of CMOs at June 30, 1996 is $1,257.5 million.

The PSERS also is involved at June 30, 1996 in two interest rate swap agreements with an estimated fair value of $892 thousand and a notional
amount of $89.1 million. The PSERS enters these swap agreements to modify interest rates on investments owned. Swap transactions involve the

exchange of interest rate payments without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts. Other than net interest income or expense resulting
from these agreements, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements.

TR




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE E— FIXED ASSETS
A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1996 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
Primary Government Discretely Presented
.
i Component Units
College
Internal  Pension General Fixed and
Enterprise  Service Trust Assets Proprietary Fiduciary  Bniversity
Fumds Funds Fund Account Group Funds Fund Funds
Land oo $ 323 % 6 % .... $ 244,738 $ 78602 $§ .... 3% 8096
Buildings ......ccovveenen. 3,352 4,111 e 2,507,733 419,097 e 332414
Improvements other
than buildings ......... 18,389 1,170 e 229,565 23,422 e 45,838
Furniture, machinery
and equipment ........ 66,889 62,386 759 576,901 184,799 13,776 334,186
Tumpike
infrastructure .......... v I . R 2,371,436
Construction in
PTOCIESS w.oioeerercans e 166 e 363,809 203,907 e 31,560
Total .....cooveinne. $ 88953 § 67,839 % 759 $4,322.746 $3,281,263 $ 13,776 $ 752,094

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
1995 Additions Retirements 1996

Land .o $ 241,269 3 3,469 $ ceen § 244738
BUildings c.eoeeeeeeeeeeee e 2,693,616 215,337 1,220 2,907,733
Improvements other than buildings ...... 196,895 32,670 e 229,565
Fumniture, machinery and equipment..... 552,997 78,217 : 54,313 576,901
3,684,777 329,693 55,533 3,958,937
231,257 132,552 . 363,809
TOtAlS v $ 3,916,034 $ 462,245 $ 55533 % 4,322,746

Interest costs of $8.1 million were capitalized for the Pennsylvania Turmpike Commission, a discretely presented component
unit Proprietary Fund, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996.

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 including appraisal and
historical cost reconstruction technigues. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are valued at cost.
At June 30, 1996 the amount of general fixed assets related to the initial valuation amounts to $1,983 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1996 is composed of the following
{expressed in thousands):

- Expended
Project Throeugh Authorization
Project Authorization June 30, 1996 Available
Department of Corrections Institutions ....occeienenoe. $ 322,259 $ 190,491 $ 131,768
Colleges and Universities .....coo.uoe...... e 255,892 72,616 183,276
Capitol Complex Buildings ......ccccoveveereene 123,422 16,353 106,869
Department of Public Welfare Institutions ... 53,355 16,844 36,511
Veteran Homes and Military Ammories..................... 53,835 22702 31,133
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources 29,493 8,804 20,68%
Historical Sites ... 27,991 6,330 21,661
Department of Transportation 26,783 11,860 14,923
10111755 U TSSO U PO SRTRROOOST 39,298 17,609 21,689
TOLAL e e s % 932,328 $ 363,809 $ 568,519

NOTE F— DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government for various department
programs.
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NOTE G— TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES ;l

Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable at June 30, 1996 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

| i
Special Trust and L
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
5818 AN USE covreermeoreccrmeeeremerenecmrerme s erremessecrecsronte $ 482967 $§ 20,638 % 1,350 $ 504,955
Unemployment COMPensation ........o.vcoeroeroreceencucnne cen e 327,106 327,106
Personal IICOME ovvuceeeeeecceeeeseeeea e ceeeseeraseaeranas 184,756 e A 184,756
Corporatiorn .......... 115,549 e ces . 115,549
Liquid fuels...... - 64,020 2,313 66,833
OHRET ot veeece e rememe e rmene s esaneee s s ste et one st ss e 16,772 55,320 - 72,092
$ 800044 $ 139978 $ 331,269 § 1,271,291
Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1996 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands): o
R Discretely Presented %
Primary Government Component Units
.
College : ;
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  Proprietary  University o
Funds Funds Funds Funds : i
Mortgage 10ans ... 3 e 8 ... $2296858 % S
Student 10805 ...c.coirnverrisrseerrenes e ciee 1,383,875 137,254
Business development loans ... 66,093 231,390 541,027
Water and sewer sysiern 10ans ... 24,786 S 1,003,052
Volunteer fire company loans e 68,135
Other notes and LOans ...eoeeoveeeecceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeacimaeene 8,738 11,489
99,617 311,014 5,224,812 37,254
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 7,545 43,228 183,639 8.566
Notes and loans receivable, net .....cooocciecnicrenane. $ 92,072 $ 267,78 % 5041173 % 28,688

Discretely presénted component unit governmental funds reported $1,544 thousand of loans to school districts at June 30,
1956,

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, finances construction projects for

educational institutions through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, the principal and interest of which are paid _
through the collection of lease rental payments and deposits in the related Capital Debt Fund, a Debt Service Fund. At the i
conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease
arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to
the principal lease payments to be received are recorded in the Capital Debt Fund. For the Capital Debt Fund, the total
minimurm lease payments to be received were $3 million and the present value of the lease payments was $2 million at
June 30, 1996, the difference representing interest of $1 million. The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority
and the State Public School Building Authority, discretely presented governmental fund component units, finance
construction projects for educational institutions through the issuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and
interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments related to the project. At the conclusion of the .
lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are

classified as direct financing leases. For discretely presented governmental fund component units, total minimum lease D
payments were $4,814 million, the present value was $2,896 million and interest was $1,918 million. The Pennsylvania ‘
Industrial Development Authority, adiscretely presented proprietary fund component unit, reported a lease rental receivable
with total minimum payments of $32 million, present value of $14 million and interest of $18 million at June 30, 1996.
Minimum lease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1996 are as follows (expressed in thousands):
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NOTE G— Taxes, Loans and Lease Rental Receivables {continued)

Discretely Presented Discretely Presented
Fiscal Year Ending Primary Governmental Fund Proprietary Fund
June 30 Government Component Units Component Units
$ 635 $ 194,536 3 634
269 224 457 634
269 223,407 634
269 225,064 634
243 223,996 634

NOTE B—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1996 is
as follows (expressed in thousands);

FUND TYPE/FUND DUE FROM DUE TO
OTHER COMPONENT OTHER CoMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Funps UniTs Funps Unirs
(€15 115 ¢:) [T et err et te e e enne e e eratanseanen $ 43,283 $ 1,959 $ 167,842 3 137
Special Revenue:
State Lottery FUnd ... oo s sesenses s 1,367 R 7,280
State Racing Fund ......ccccoveceeennne e e 10,203
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund ___........coooecovvrevevrirenna, 21,603 e 275 e
Motor License Fund ......ooccoiieeeeeeeee e e 20,089 898 25,071 3,370
Fish and Game Fund....c..oeeee.... 3,358 Ce 1,490 e
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund ........ccoocoooivnrvinrine. 13 . 4,591
Agricultural Conservation Easerment Fund ... 10,777 R cee
Other FUNAS ..ot searaes e 3,214 6 3,654 .
62,421 004 52,564 3,370
Debt Service:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption Fund .......cccoooeciiiceic e e 33,766 e
Tax Note Sinking Fund.... AN e 3,105
Other Funds ...o..cov ettt 127 e R
127 33,766 3,105
Capital Projects:
Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund. ......... 2,871 e AU
Other FURAS oot eee e enes 952 e 14
3,823 e 14
Enterprise: i
State Stores FURU ..o eves et e 439 e 18,080
State Workmen's Insurance Fund ......, 503 Ces 6,676
Rehabilitation Center Fund ............... 3,863 e 169
Other Funds ..o eeen e R &5
4,805 - 25,010
Internal Service:
Purchasing Fund ..o enssnie 7,013 812 670
Manufacturing Fund ..o 2,866 8 355
- : 9,881 820 1,025
‘ Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Fund .........coooovvreeeneeee. 2,540 108 2
b Other FUNAS .vocvereeeiccsanisiisniscceecmsaee s sess sinaensns 2 e 19
P 2,542 108 21
Pension Trust:
State Employes’” Retirement SYSIEm ....ceevveeeevieveerneiee 88,285 2,770 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

1
C
DUE FROM DUE TO N
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT O7HER Privary OTHER PRIMARY
(CONTINUED) Funps  GOVERNMENT Funps (GOVERNMENT l
Agency: : s
Liquid Fuels Tax Fund ... R e 1,628
Local Sales and Use Tax Fund ..o 10,016 R 12 R i
Allegheny Regional Asset District Sales and Use Tax ..... 13,753 e 15 e
OLher FURAS wovveeveveoe et ceeeeteeesesaeaeermssansssessessseseansesean 751 e 744 i
24,520 e 2,399 - o
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT .....ccoervunvvreen $239,687 % 40,327 $251,982 $ 3,507 |
-
DISCRETELY PRESENTED D
COMPONENT UNITS
GOVEFNMENTA] -, eeeeeveeeeeeenecreerermemrecseees e eemrne s esnneeesrasens ) e $ ..o.. % 3 1 i
F
Proprietary: : o
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ........... 74 R 98 33,835
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission .......ovoevecicceane e 4,031 e 4,076 i
OHher FUNAS o tisss i essissas s ssss s ras s sas s sasasannns 98 - 74 1,016
172 4,031 172 38,927 '
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement System ... e 728 e 1,730
College and University «........ocooeirnrceerrccrrm e 140,703 e 140,703 8,000
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS ... reeveeareeerens $ 140875 % 4759 % 140,875 $ 48,658
I
o
L
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NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

The amount of total interfund receivables of $425,648 thousand does not agree with total interfund payables
of $445,022 thousand at June 30, 1996 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the
combined balance sheet at June 30, 1996. The amounts shown as interfund accounts for the State Employes’
Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, are as of
their fiscal year end of December 31, 1995. The amount shown for the State Workmen's Insurance Fund, an
Enterprise Fund are as of its fiscal year end of December 31, 1995. The following presents a reconciliation of
interfund accounts reported at June 30, 1996 and those amounts which would have been reported if all funds
used the same fiscal year end (expressed in thousands):

Due from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1996 ... $ 380,562

Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
JUNE 30, I9UG ..o e ettt 4,759
Due from component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1996 .. 40,327
Interfund receivables — Combined Balance Sheet ............... 425,648

State Workimen’s Insurance Fund increase in recelvables from

January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996 .o 240
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996 .....ooeeiroeeee e eveeee e 13,797
TOTAL INTERFUND RECEIVABLES .........ccoooeveee... $ 439,685
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30,1996 ... $§ 392,857
Due to primary government - Comhbined Balance Sheet at
JUNE 30, BOD6 ...ttt aen 48,658
Due to component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1996 ... 3,507
Interfund payables — Combined Ralance Sheet ._................. 445,022
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996 .......oooumoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeree e eeeeeee e (16)
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in payables from '
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996 ....ooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 918
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996 ...eeoericeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeee e (6,239)
TOTAL INTERFUND PAYABLES ... 3 439,685

At June 30, 1996 the General Fund has reported Advances to Other Funds of $72,475. Specificaily, this
amount has been advanced as follows: $66,000 to the State Stores Fund, $2,300 to the State Workmen's
Insurance Fund, both Enterprise Funds, $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, and $2,000 to the Pharmaceutical
Assistance Fund, both Special Revenue Funds. These amounts have been reported by the Tespective owing
Funds as Advances from Other Funds, except for the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, which has reported an
advance of $2,000 for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 (amounts in thousands).

At June 30, 1996 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has reported an advance to
other funds of $3,000 (in thousands). This amount was advanced to the Air Quality Improvement Fund, a
Special Revenue Fund, which has reported an advance from other funds of $3,000 (in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A
NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)
A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
OPERATING TRANSFERS
FUND TYPE/FUND From To )
COMPONENT COMPONENT s
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT In Units Our Units d
GENELAL ... ecrrsreenssmss st sareersrsssraressnnsnscnss st st s sesss e 9 110,408 b3 A $ 565397 § 724,893 .
Special Revenue: : ;
State Lottery FURa vt 91 e 241,387 R Cd
State Racing Fund ...... . 10,085
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund e e 7,000
Motor License Fund .. 47 s 184,733
Vocational Rehabﬂltatton Fund 24,105 e e e ‘
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund " . 216,000 ce e R
Industrial Sites Clean-up Fand ..o 5,000 Ce R
Other Funds .............. 6,657 e 9,805
251,900 e 453,014
Debt Service:
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ... 25,016 R e s o
Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund . 16,506 e . . o
Capttal Debt Fund .. . 605,226 ;
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authonty :
Redemption Fund .. 21,867 R
Local Criminal Justice Smkm-:v Fund ... 14,658 . i
Pennsylvama Economic Revitalization Smkmg Fund . 10,326 e e ’ E
Other Funds .. 25,420 R 1,231 o
' 719,019 e 1,231
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund..................... (878)
Land and Water Development Funid ... 173
(705)
Enterprise: ;
State Stores Fund ... e e 43,117 !
Expendable Trust:
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Fund ... s e 25,333 it
Pension Trust: E‘ ?
State Employes’ Retirement SYSEm ....ooeeoeemee e B 8,534 - 6,493 o
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT .....cccouvrrmivermiecriceeene. $ 1,087,387 5 8534 $ 1087387 3 731,388
OPERATING TRANSFERS
From To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED Privary PRIMARY
COMPONENT UNITS i GOVERNMENT Our (GOYERNMENT
Governmental Funds .........o.ocveovvivieniennnserenessvesssees emms s eeeees $ 851,896 % 36,000 5 B8518% %
Proprietary:
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance AZEncy ... e 282,877
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZEncY ..o e 18,000 i
300,877 |
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement SYStem ..o e 2,491 e 4,121 !
College and University Funds ...t e 388,016 e e : I

TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS oot $ 851,896 § 727384 5 85189 % 4,121




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (centinued)

The amount of total operating transfers in of $2,675,201does not agree with total operating transfers out of $2,674,792 for
the fiscal year ended June 30,1996 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the financial reporting
entity. The amounts shown as operating transfers for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, are
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. The following presents a reconciliation of operating transfers reported in the
financial statements to those transfer amounts which would have been reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end
{expressed in thousands):

Operating transfers in - all fuonds ... $ 1,939,283
Operating transfers from primary government 727,384
Operating transfers from component UMIS ......v.ooeeeeceeeeeceeceeee e : 3,334
Sub-total interfund Operating ranSFErs iM ..o eese e ceemes oo 2,675,201
State Employes” Retirement System decrease in operating transfers in
for the period Jannary 1, 1996 10 June 30, F996 oo eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoe (4,413}
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS IN ..ot eeareranens $ 2,670,788
Operating transfers out - all funds ... $ 1,939,283
Operating transfers to primary government ... 4,121
Operating transfers to cOMPONENt WIS ..o.ovuivereeeeceeececeee e 731,388
Sub-total interfund operating transfers OUL ............ccccoovvervsereeseeeeesee e oo 2,674,792
State Employes’ Retirement System decrease in operating transfers out
for the period January 1, 1996 to June 30, 1906 ..o e e v (4,004 )
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT ..ot $ 2,670,788

Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types——primary government and discretely presented
component units—during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Increases in contributed capital—primary SOVemmEnt ._.........ccoooiceieveeeeans $ 3,516
Decreases in contributed capital-discretely presented component unit ................. (1,503)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Increases in contributed capital—primary gOVEmMmMENt ........oovvieereoemee e 23,425
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units ... 157,633
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component ugits ............. (2,895)
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary

government and discretely presented cOMPONENt UNALS ..........ooeveviieees i 3 180,176

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental residual equity
transfers (amounts in thousands):

Total governmental residual equity transfers out .............ocoooooeeiooiiieeienn., 3 46,340
add: general obligation bond proceeds and federal funds received
by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment AUthority .........oeeececeeecenec.. 128,847
less: program grants disbursed by the Pennsylvanta
Infrastructure Investment AUthOTILY .ovvceremcreeeeeree oo eee e en s (2,895)
add: federal funds received by the Tummpike Commission ........ 9,001
add: federal funds received by the Capital Loan Fund................. 366
less: other decrease to Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency {1,503)
add: other increase to the Rehabilitation Center Fund ..o 20
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented COmpPORENt UNILS .....oevvvveeeeseviresseeeeceeeeeee e $ 180,176



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, with amortization
of the unfunded actuarial asset of $443 million and of the supplemental annuities arising from cost of living
and other adjustments over 20 year periods. These rates are computed on a Commonwealth fiscal year basis
such that employer contribution rates in effect for the SERS for 1995 reflect a blended average of those in
effect through June 30, 1995 and subsequent to that date, as calculated based upon actuarial valuations prepared
as of December 31, 1993 and December 31, 1994, respectively. The actuarially determined contribution
requirement for the year ended December 31, 1995 consisted of (amounts in thousands):

% of Current

Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer normal COSE ..o e 10.48 5 404,512
Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability (asset) .......cceocieeeeene - (2.30) ( 88,770
Amortization of supplemental annuities ..........ceeceieeeees et 1.22 47,090
Total contribution TeqUITeTMent .....cooeeueerereceee i 9.40 $ 362.826

Member contributions amounted to $202 million, or 5.24 percent and employer contributions amounted to
$385 million, or 9.98 percent, of total actual covered payroll of $3,858 million, for the year ended December
31, 1995. Total employer contributions of $385 million are more than the above actuarially determined
contribution requirement of $363 million due to employer contributions related to employe purchases of prior
service cost and employer contributions related to the transfer of prior employe service from the Public School
Employes’ Retirement System to the SERS. Total employer contributions amounted to $409 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, of which $375 million relates to agencies included in the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity. The Commonwealth employer contributions of $375 million approximate 92 percent
of total employer contributions of $409 million.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the employer contribution requirement, determined
as part of the December 31, 1993 and 1994 valuations, are as follows: rate of return on investments, 9.9
percent in 1994 and 1995, graded down to 6 percent after 2015; projected salary increases of 4 percent per
year compounded annually, attributable to inflation; additional salary increases of 2.5 and 2.7 percent per year
in 1993 and 1994, attributable to merit/promotion; and no benefit increases. The merit/promotion salary increases
changed from 1993 to 1994 because the Commonwealth adopted a new pay plan January 1, 1994 which
replaced 35 pay steps with 20 pay steps.

THREE-YEAR HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the pension benefit obligation
applicable to covered employes .......coevvvneerrenncicncan 110.8 % 101.2 % 115.6 %
Assets in excess of pension benefit obligation
as a percentage of the SERS’s annual
coverad payToll ..o 41.9 43 52.1
Employer contributions to the pension plan
as a percentage of annual covered payroll .................. 10.1 92 8.6

All required contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements for each of the
three years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993.

Ten-year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the SERS. These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Besnefits (continued)

The following information is presented in accordance with the reporting requirements of FASB Statement 35.

The calculation of actuarial liabilities under GASB Statement 5 (the pension benefit obligation presented
above) differs from the calculation of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits (presented
below) required under FASB Statement 35 principally by the use of different future salary increases and
different rates of return on investments.

The accumulated plan benefit information as of December 31, 1995 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits:
Vested benefits:

Participants currently receiving payments ........co..o.oovvveeeene.... 3 6,109,425
Other PartiCIPATIIS _o.o.eeeeceveeeet et oo 6,222,296
12,331,721

Nonvested DEneILS ..ovem e e e 254,196
TOAL v $ 12,585,917

Changes in accumulated plan benefits as of December 31, 1995 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits

at December 31, 1994 e $ 11,405,985
Increases during the year attributable to:
Passage of HIME ..o e eeee e 522,143
Change in actuarial assumptions:
TIEETESE FALES 1vvei ettt n e e 300,740
Mortality tables ..o e 357,049
INEEIRCTEASE oot cee e ee st e et 1,179,932
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits
at December 31, 1995 ... 3 12,585,917

The actuarial assumption change causing the largest increase in cost in 1995 was the change in the demographic
assumption from the 1971 Group Annunity Mortality Table (GAM - 71) to the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality
Table (GAM - 83) for current and future employes to reflect continuing mortality improvement, The GAM -
71 table continues to apply for current retirees.

The significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan
benefits as of December 31, 1995 are as follows:

Mortality
Superannuation (normal retirement) Current Retirees, Beneficiaries and Survivors:
and early retirement The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table,
set back 6 years for females
Current and Future Employes:
The 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table
Disability Modifications of the Federal Civil Service
Disability Mortality Table
Assumed rate of return on investments 7.25%

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public School Employes’ Retirement System (System)
was established July 18, 1917 under the provisions of PL. 1043, No. 343. The System is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan that provides retirement allowances and other benefits, including death, disability,
and health care benefits, to members. According to GASB Statement 5, the Commonwealth is a non-employer
contributor to the System, The financial statements of the System are prepared on the accrual basis.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Membership in the System is mandatory for substantially all full-time public school employes in the
Commonwealth. Certain part-time employes are eligible for membership in the System. At June 30, 1996
there were 636 participaling employers, generally school districts. Membership as of June 30, 1995, the most
recent year for which actual amounts are available, consisted of:

(S

Retirees and beneficiaries cuﬁently receiving benefits ... 116,000 " i

Inactive members and vestees entitled to, but not yet .
receiving benefits ... 38,000

154,000 i

kil i

Current employes: i
VESEEX - oottt e e 122,000
Nonvested 89,000
211,000
TOtAl MEIMBELS ..o ieeeeeeeee e e ee e vms e s ar e ererans 365,000

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the estimated current covered payroll for public school employes
was $7.6 million. Total payrol} for public school employes was substantially the same. The annualized covered
payroll at June 30, 1995, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, was $7,378 million.

Pension Benefits: Significant amendments to the System were made in the 1975 revision of the Pennsylvania .
Public School Employes’ Retirement Code (“the Code”) by the Pennsylvania General Assembly. Under the
provisions of the Code, members are eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at
least one full year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (¢} 35 or more years of service
regardless of age. On April 29, 1994 Act 29 was signed into law which, among other items, permitted school
employes with at least 30 years of credited service to retire without a reduction in benefits until June 30, 1997.
This so-called “early retirement window” does not require a minimum age in conjunction with length of 5
service for a member to be eligible for full benefits. In addition to the early retirement window, Act 29 provided o
for the following benefit changes:

= @Granted a cost-of-living adjustment beginning July 1, 1994, for those who retired on or before
June 30, 1992 (excluding those members who retired under the "Mellow Bill,” Act 186 of 1992). o

« Allowed members who terminated service between May 15, 1992, and July 1, 1992, to become :
eligible for an additional 10 percent service credit. ;

Act 29 also made effective the option for any member who was a previous annuitant of the System to eliminate

the effect of the frozen present value in his subsequent retirement benefit calculation. To qualify for the
election the member must 1) after July 1, 1994 be an active member, inactive member on leave, or vested :
member not having retired again, 2} earn at least three years of credited service since returning to school
employment, 3) not be a multipie service member (have accumulated service credit with Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania State Employes’ Retirement Systern) and 4) agree to a debt against his account for purposes of
eliminating the effect of the frozen present value.

Benefits are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied by the
number of years of credited service. After completion of 10 years of service, a member’s right to the defined
benefit is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. Under certain features of the System, active
members may purchase credit for types of prior educational or military service on a lump-sum or installment
purchase basis.

In addition to regular retirement benefits, the System also provides for disability retirement benefits and death
benefits. Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of 5 years of eligible
service. Such benefits are equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied by
the number of vears of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary (unless the participant would
have less than 16.667 years of credited service had the participant worked until superannuation age, in which
case the participant receives two percent of final average salary times the number of years service that would
have been credited had the participant worked until superannuation age), nor greater than the benefit the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

member would have had at superannuation retirement age. In addition, under Act 29, members older than
normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 or who has at least 10
years of eligible service. Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit which would have been effective
if the member had retired on the day before death.

Members with credited service in the State Employes’ Retirement System may elect to transfer such service to
the Public School Empioyes’ Retirement System upon commencement of employment in the public school
system. Similarly, a member with credited service in the System may transfer such service to the State Employes’
Retirement System upon becoming a member of that system.

Upon termination of a member’s employment in the public school sector, the member’s accumulated
contributions plus interest are refundable from the Members® Savings Account

Postemployment Healthcare Benefits: The System provides a health insurance premium assistance program
(premium assistance), a postemployment healthcare plan, for all eligible annuitants, as defined in the Code
and amended by Act 29, who elect to participate. Under this program, an employer contribution rate for
premium assistance was established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance Account that are sufficient for
the payment of premium assistance benefits. Participating eligible annuitants are entitled to receive premium
assistance payments equal to the lesser of $55 per month or their monthly health insurance premium. In order
to receive premium assistance, eligible annuitants must obtain their health insurance through either their
employer or the System's Health Options Program (HOP), in which the System acts as a conduit between the
insurance companies and the eligible annuitant.

Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as “pension benefit obligation™ is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of
credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System’s funding status on a going-concern
basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make coImparisons
among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial fundin g method used
to determine contributions to the System.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1995, the date of
the most recent actuarial report. Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 8.50 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary
increases of 6.75 percent, including an allowance for inflation of 4 percent, national productivity of 1 percent
and merit or seniority increases averaging 1.75 percent, and (c) no postretirement benefit increases.

At June 30, 1995 net assets in excess of pension benefit obligation were $585 million as follows {expressed in
thousands):

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated members entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving benefits ...ooorovveeerieece e 5 9,884,919

Healthcare payments .............. 46,459
Inactive members and VESIEES w.eeeeoeevereeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeoeoeeeesn 316,016
Current members:
Accumulated member contributions with interest ................._.. 5,089,724
System-financed vested ......oooooimeeeeeee e 4,816,002
System-financed nONVESted .uoouveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 8,062,023
Total pension benefit obHZAHON ...vvveveeeeeeeeeeereiseieeee e, 28,215,143
Net assets available for benefits, at fair value ...ooooeeeeeeeeevieeeeo . 28,800,502
Net assets in excess of pension benefit obligation ................ $ 585,359
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NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued).

Contributions: The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active members,
employers, and the Commonwealth. The System's funding policy provides for periodic employer and Com-
monwealth contributions as actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll,
such that they, along with employe contributions and an actuarially determined rate of investment return, are
adequate to accumulate adequate assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentage of payroll employer
contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method. This formula deter-
mines the armnount of contributions necessary to (1) fully fund all current costs, which represents the estimated
amount necessary to pay for the benefits eamed by the employes during the current service year; and (2)
liquidate the prior service cost for service earned prior to plan inception and subsequent benefit increases,
which represenis the amount necessary to fund accrued liabilities over a period of 20 years as required by the
Code. The total contribution rate for the employers and the Commonwealth for fiscal year ended June 30,
1996 was 11.72 percent of qualified compensation. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the
period in which employes salaries are reported.

Contribution rates for active members are set by law. As of June 30, 1996, the contribution rates based on
qualified member compensation are as follows:

Active members hired before July 22, 1983 525%
Active members hired on or after July 22, 1983 6.25%

A portion of each employer and Commonwealth contribution to the System is set aside for the funding of
premium assistance. The premivm assistance contribution rate is set at a level necessary to accumulate assets
sufficient 1o provide premium assistance payments for all participating eligible members for the subsequent
fiscal year. Of the 11.72 percent total contribution rate for employers and the Commonwealth for fiscal year
ended June 30, 1996, 0.62 percent was the portion used to fund premium assistance. The remaining compo-
nents of the contribution rate are comprised of employer normal cost of 6.43 percent and amortization of
unfunded actuarial accrued liability and supplemental annuities of 4.67 percent.

Prior to July 1, 1995 employers and the Commonwealth shared equally the contribution rate. Effective July 1,
1995, employers defined as school entities (school distrcts, area vocational-technical schools, and intermedi-
ate units) are required to pay the entire employer contribution rate. These school entities are reimbursed by the
Commonwealth in an amount equal to the Commonwealth's share as determined by the income aid ratio (as
defined in Act 29 of 1994), which is at Iast one half of the total employer rate. For other employers which are
not school entities, the employer contribution rate continues to be shared equally. Employer contribution
payments relating to non-school entities are made directly to the System from the non-school entity and the
Commonwealth.

The contributions required of employers and the Commonwealth are based upon an actuarial valuation, using
the “entry age notmal” method, computed as a-percentage of the total compensation of all active members
during the period for which the amount is determined.

Based on the June 30, 1994 valuation, the unfunded actuarial liability is $3,102 million and the average
funding period to amortize this liability is 20 years at July 1, 1991, with payments increasing 5 percent
annually. Changes in the unfunded liability subsequent to July 1, 1991 are amortized over a period of 20 years
from July 1 of the fiscal year following the change, with payments increasing 5 percent annually.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the System owned no securities issued by school districts, the
Commonwealth or any related parties and made no loans to school districts, the Commonweaith or any related

party.
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth funds certain health care benefits for retired employes (that meet specified length-of-
service and age requirements) and their eligible dependents. These benefits are provided as a result of negotiated
union contracts and through administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these
benefits as paid, which totalled $160 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. Approximately 79,000
individuals qualified for these benefits during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, including disability life insurance and
certain benefits to beneficiaries of state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount expended for
these benefits was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth issued $500 million of tax anticipation notes
which matured on June 30, 1996. The $15.2 million of interest related to the notes is shown as a debt service
expenditure in the General Fund.

The State Stores Fund, an Enterprise Fund, has reported $356 thousand of notes payable as of June 30, 1996
collateralized by investments held with the Treasury. The notes bear interest rates of 5.38 to 6.66 percent. The
Purchasing Fund, an Internal Service Fund, has reported $1.4 million of notes payable at June 30, 1996,
bearing interest at 6.6 percent.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a governmental fund component unit, entered into the
Treasury Initiative for Education (TIE) Program with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department (Treasury). The
SPSBA issued a $75 million note which was purchased by the Treasury. The proceeds of this note were
deposited by the SPSBA with the Treasury, which invested the proceeds in a manner acceptable to both
parties. The note is due April 28, 1997. It is renewable on an annual basis for a term not to exceed two years.
Interest is payable at a percentage rate which will be the lesser of the rate of interest payable from 90 day
Treasury Bills plus 20 basis points or the rate earned by the Treasury Short Term Investment Pool. The interest
rate at June 30, 1996 was 5.42 percent. The note is collateralized by investments the SPSB A has made with the
Treasury. The SPSBA has agreed to make $25 million available for Ioans to school districts and $50 million
available for reinvestment by the Treasury at the time loans are made to the school districts. The outstanding
balance of the note payable at June 30, 1996 was $47.4 million.”

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component unit, has
reported $571.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $460.5 million of notes payable consistin g
of student oan financing of $437.3 million and capital financing arrangements of $23.2 million at June 30.
1996. Demand revenue bonds at June 30, 1996 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Student Loan Student Loan Student Loan Student Loan
Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate
Student Loan Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Student Loan
Revenue Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Revenue Bonds

1994 Serfes A 1938 Series E 1988 Series C 1988 Series B 1988 Series A 1995 Series A
Amount issued ... $125,000 $ 36,000 $ 75,000 $110,000 $100,000 $125.000
Drate of issue ........ 12/15/94 8194 8/94 7/29/88 1/28/88 12/7/95
Interest rate ......... 14% 3.4% 3.4% 34% 3.4% 3.4%
Due date ... 12/1/24 1/111% 1/1/19 T8 1/1/18 12/1/25
Letter of credit:
Principal amount . 5133425 $ 36,592 § 76,233 5119,625 $101,643 §133,425
Expiration date .... 12/14/9% 7/31/99 1/3/98 12/7/59 12/6/98

. T3179%

The bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate determined by PHEAA’s remarketing agent based upon prevailing
market conditions and is reset weekly. All bonds are subject to purchase, at par plus accrued interest, by
PHEAA on the demand of the bondholders upon seven days prior irrevocable written notice. None of the
letters of credit pertaining to PHEAA’s demand revenue bonds have been used as of June 30, 1996.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

Student loan financing notes payable for PHEAA at June 30, 1996 consist of the following (expressed in
thousands):

Line of credit agreement dated November 5, 1992 with interest at
prime, 8.25 percent, at June 30, 1996, (paid quarterly} and annual
principal payments.
Principal not to exceed $16 million ...coovvveeenvceecir e $ 9,500

Amount due under revolving credit agreement dated September 23,
1994, through June 15, 1997. Interest rate at June 30, 1996 was 6.154
percent. Principal not to exceed $60 million ... 52,775

Note payable, interest at 91 day U.S. Treasury Bill rate plus .9 percent -
(6.138 percent at June 30, 1996), due February 28, 1997 .................. 70,000

Note purchase agreement dated May 1, 1990, amended subsequent to
May 1, 1992, and extended through October 31, 1996. It provides for
three separate notes known as the 1991 F, G, and H Series. Principal
not to exceed $300 million in the aggregate. Interest is the 91 day
Treasury Bill rate plus .5 percent (5.585 percent at June 30, 1996) ..... 286,960

Note purchase agreement dated September 21, 1994, with monthly
extensions granted since the original due date of April |, 1996.
Principal not to exceed $200 million. Interest is the 91 day Treasury
Bill rate plus .65 percent (5.735 percent at June 30, 1996) ... 18,100

o] 3 (O OSSOSO '$ 437,335

Capital financing arrangements for PHEAA at June 30, 1996 consist of the following {expressed in thousands):

Dauphin County General Authority Revenue Bonds. Interest is a
weighted average rate of 6.1 percent and is paid semiannually on
March 1 and Septemnber 1. Principal is due through 2009 ................. 5 3,275

Note payable refinanced in October 1992 with interest at 5.63 percent

and monthly payments of principal and interest through November 1,

B0 T et e el e oot 4,605
Note payable dated December 31, 1992 with interest at 6.7 percent and

semiannual paymenis of principal and interest through December 31,

2002 ettt sttt st et e R na e ne e ra e et e 2,488
Loan security agreement dated April 12, 1994 with interest at primne,

8.25 percent, at June 30, 1996, (paid quarterly) and annual principal

PAYINENS ... .coimereer et crmememes et s b s remma s ceese e sa b e e ememe s e s seas s 767
Amounts due under various installment purchase agreements bearing

interest at various rates that average approximately 6.1 percent ......... 12,030

2511 OO $ 23,165

All of PHEAA’s capital financing arrangements are collateralized with property, plant and equipment. The
aggregate maturities due for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1996 and through maturity are as
follows (expressed in thousands):

I i $ 10,307
1998 . 5,498
1999 . 3,650
2000 e 762
2001 e 806
Thereafter ......oceeeruvurerncc. 2,142
Total veeeeeereer e $ 23,165

i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J-—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

‘The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund component unit, maintains two lines
of credit with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which it may borrow up to $15 million and $50
million to fund its multi-family housing program. The $15 million line of credit bears interest from the date of
issuance at a rate equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes ptus 20 basis points. The $50 million
line of credit bears interest at a fixed rate on the date of a draw equal to the current yield on two year Treasury
Notes plus 15 basis points. At June 30, 1996 $4 million and $30 million were owed at a range of 4.47 to 6.98
percent and 4.24 to 6.13 percent, respectively, against the $15 million and $50 million lines of credit. Total
reported notes payable at June 30, 1996 for the PHFA is $40.2 million.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 1996 and changes for the fiscal year then ended
are as follows (expressed in thousands):

GENERAL LONG-TERM Maturity Bonds -
Issue Interest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP Dates Rates Through  But Unissued July 1, 1995 Additions Reductions  June 30, 1996

General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:

Capital Facilities ......ccevereeccemreeneimmcncenes 1968-96 4.00-10.16% 2016 $ 16,323,022 $ 2880845 § 332000 $ 494075 5 2,718,770
Disaster Relief . .....o.vouerermmsmensecreeineenes 1973-89 4.91- 6.60% 2003 21,908 45,135 e 4,895 40,240
Land and Water Development ............... 1969-94 4.00- 7.30% 2014 300 105,740 . 20,100 85,640
Nursing Home Loan Development ........ 1977-86 3.32- 826% 2002 31,000 12,720 e 4,400 §,320
Project 70 Land Acquisition e 1970 6.26% 2000 RN 3,380 A 590 2,790
Volunteer Companies Loati ..covivinns 1977-94 4.00-10.75% 2014 10,000 21,900 . 2,110 19,790
Vietnam Conflict Veterans

COmPENSAtION oo sssrsssrsrasvasriane 1970-74 5.36- 6.11% 2003 3,000 12,610 . 1,895 10,715
Water Facilities Loan .............. .. 198396 4.00- 826% 2016 15,500 132,930 20,000 14,520 138,410
Peansylvania Economtc Rewtalzzatmn.. 1991-95 440- 6.70% 2015 14,000 86,740 2.000 9.430 79,310
Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Investment AUthority ..ooevrerrrserrneeas 1988-96 4.00- 6.90% 2016 297,000 230,720 67,500 13,105 285,115
Agricultural Conservation Easernent

Purchase .. rerreeenneeeeee 199194 430- 6.75% 2014 19,000 74,700 e 4,465 70,235
Local Cnmmal Jus[;ce ........................... 1992-96 4.10- 6.75% 2016 19,000 169,275 6,000 5,360 169,915
Keystone Recreation, Park and

CORSEEVAHON o ece s 1994-96 5.00- 6.75% 2016 14,000 12,000 24.000 330 35,670
Refunding Bonds .....coc.ceoscereeenecncnacns 1986-96 4.00- 7.00% 2010 [,251,967 221,333 76,690 1,396,610

16,767,730 3,040,662 672.833 651,965 5,061,530
Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues:
Installment Purchase Obligations .......... e e v e 13,165 20,113 6,110 27,170
Capitai Lease Obligations ...................... e e .. .. 60,624 352 2,547 58,429
Obligations Under Master Lease

Agreement—EqQUIPIENT i v caaaean e cees 105,605 e 35,090 70,515
Obligations Under Master Lease—

Prison Faciliti€s ooooocveveeeceeeveeeeeeieee cvee e e . 757,720 . 24,205 733,515
Self-Insurance—Note O oovieeeeees ... L oo . 978,468 234,364 94928 1,117,904
Compensated Absences .....ocovevevevees 0. L. . R 506,397 271,145 236,975 540,567
Catastrophic Motor Vehicle Losses ... ...  ....... e e 181,344 21,693 31,598 171,439
L7117 USSR ceee e . - 1,038,623 291,821 420,749 909,695

3,641,946 839,490 852,202 3,629,234
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP cee e ... % 16767730 5 8,682,608 $ 1512323 § 1,504,167 § 8,690,764

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented component unit organizations at June 30, 1996 (May 31, 1996 for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (expressed in thousands):
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Bonds Payable From Lease Rentals:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational

Facilities Authority .. . 196996 2.70- 9.63% 2031 $ 2,102,946 $ 1,205,128 $ 667,315 S 2,640,759
State Public School Bulidm& Authomy . 198696 2.75- 790% 2017 316,205 39,620 25860 329,965
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS e e e 2,419,151 1,244,748 693,175 2,970,724

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Revenue Bonds Payable From User
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education

Assistance Agency .. . 1984-92 3.51-11.033% 2026 737,785 100,000 e 837,785
Pennsylvania Housmv Fmance Ac'ency . 1982-96 2.88-10.875% 2028 2,130,278 329,647 150,820 2,309,105
Pennsylvania Indusmal Development

Authority ... - w1994 450- 7.00% 2014 349,995 e 10,695 339,300
Pennsylvania Tumplke Commlssmn . 1986-94 2.50-7.875% 2019 1,252,560 R 23,900 1,228,660
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investmem )

AhOIIY e saresreseers 1990-94 3.10- 7.15% 2014 220,010 e 6,910 213,100

4,690,628 429,647 192,325 4,927,950

Less: Bond discounts .......ocoreoceeececees cee e . 64,542 2,908 6,232 61,218

Deferred costs of refunding ........ ... ..., . - 384 2,628 52 3,460

TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... ceee e e 4625202 424111 186,041 4,863,272
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ........ ....  ....... . $ 7,044353 51,668,859 $ 879,216 § 7.833,9%6

[—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds
accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majaority of its bond issues. Additional cash
with fiscal agents is held by the Federal Government for unemployment compensation claims.

The balance outstanding at June 30, 1996 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for Refunding Bonds includes
$7.7 million of accreted value for capital appreciation bonds. No principal or interest is payable on the capital appreciation
bonds until maturity.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following (expressed in
thousands):

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims............ $ 582,024
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) «.coooovemreeeee. 156,463
Litigation—NOte P ..ot 132,761
Medical Assistance Cost Settlements w....oooeeevveveveurene . 37,713
Arbitrage Rebate Tax ....cocoveceeeveircrreiescee v 734

$ 909,695

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen’s Compensation
Law to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurence carriers. The PURTA provides for a tax on utility realty
property which is available for apptopriation as a general revenue source. The Act also provides for payment of a tax distribution
to local taxing authorities. The Commonwealth is liable for underpayments of medical assistance to nursing homes and inpatient
hospitals based upon audits performed on the medical assistance program. Amounts inctuded in the General Lon g-Term Obligations
Account Group at June 30, 1996 relating to Workmen’s Compensation Claims, PURTA, Litigation, Medical Assistance, and
Arbitrage Rebate Tax are not payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

In 1991, the Commonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authorities for the rental of five new
prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each lease provided for the Commonwealth to
pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation
issued certificates of participation to refund the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to
provide additional construction funding. As a result of the consolidated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments
equal to the fmance corporation’s debt service payments. Both the original and the new leases provide that the Commonwealth’s
obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to provide for these obligations. In the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using the new prison facilities. The finance corporation holds nominal
title to the facilities as security for the Commonwealth lease payments. When the certificates are fully redeemed, at which time
the lease agreement expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth has reported $733.5
million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general fixed assets for the new prison facilities.

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $33.1 billion as of August 31, 1996, with net debt outstandin g
of $3.9 billion.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsyivania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), discretely presented
proprietary fund component units, have pledged substantially all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding.
Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 1996 (May 31, 1996 for the
PTC) include bond discounts of $61.2 million.

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), discretely
presented governmental fund component units, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1996 which are payable from the lease
rentals of the projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

At June 30, 1996 the SPSBA reported $210 thousand in other general long-term obligations which represents a liability for

compensated absences.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary go;}ernment
and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1996 (May 31, 1996 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (expressed

in thousands):
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2002
Throngh
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 Maturity Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS: )
Capital Faclitles ......ccocooemmnnc e $ 420,013 % 387045 § 352739 § 320489 § 278958 § 2,170,407 $ 3,929,651
Disaster Relef ... - " 7,001 6,980 6,961 6,820 6,833 13,773 48,368
Land and Water Developmem ...... 19,142 16,521 14,770 14,580 13,639 25,695 104,347
Nursing Home Loan Development ... 3,414 1,920 1,868 643 596 1,099 9,540
Project 70 Land Acquisition ................. 780 778 783 785 e R 3,126
Volunteer Companies Loan ......coevee. 3,329 2,355 2,267 2,188 2,098 16,416 28,653
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
COmMPENSAION ...coue.evvemeeemeemrecnecmmcmeeeas 2,578 2,581 2,592 2,601 478 1,459 12,289
Water Facilities Loan 14,605 14,017 13,232 13,106 12,883 144,976 212,819
Pennsylvania Econormc Revntal:zauon . 9,116 8,950 8,782 8,622 8,452 78,220 122,142
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority ............... 29,370 28,812 28,394 26,794 25,270 300,954 439,594
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase .. 6,906 6,842 6,785 6,724 6,669 75,171 109,097
Local Cmrunal Jusuce 15,172 15,172 15,182 15,187 15,193 197,468 273,374
Keystone Recreation, Park and
Conservation ..... 3,068 3,061 3,050 3,047 3,041 44,403 39,670
Refunding Bonds ... 172,503 179,047 178,903 185,843 181,582 984,859 1,882,737
Total Prncipal and Interest .... . 706,997 674,081 636,308 607,429 555,692 4,054,900 7,235,407
Less: Interest Payments .............. 269,117 245,366 221,178 200,015 180,567 1,057,634 2,173,877
437,880 428,715 415,130 407,414 375,125 2,997,266 5,061,530
Other General Long-Term Obligations .. 338,011 219,658 201,273 148,250 141,543 2,580,459 3,629,234
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNTGROUFP S 775,891 3 648373 § 616403 $ 3555664 § 516668 3 5,577,765 $ 8,690,764

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority .. . $ 163394 5 193,113 0§ 192,197 § 193701 $ 192606 $ 3,453347 $ 4,388,358
State Public School Bunldmg Authonty 33,978 34,679 34,529 34,708 34,717 327,687 500,298
Totad Principal and Interest ................ 197,372 227,792 226,726 228,409 227323 3,781,034 4,888,656
Less: Interest Payments ............ 136,289 137,148 132,543 127,769 124,628 1,259,555 1,917,932

TOTAL GOVERNMENTALFUNDS ... 3 61,083 5 90644 § 54,183 3 100,640 3 102,695

3 2,521,479

$ 2,970,724

PROPRIETARY FUNDS:
Revenue Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Education

Assistance AZEncy ............ $ 54347 % 54,348 % 54,347 % 54348 5 44002 § 1,461,913 $ 1,723,305
Pennsylvania Housing Fmance Aoency 252,662 188,190 189,774 188,743 190,213 3,755,202 4,764,784
Pennsylvania Industrial Development

Authority ... 32,257 33,722 34,276 33,679 32,773 371,437 538,144
Pennsylvania Tump:ke Commlsston 93,551 97.503 96,895 96,965 97,371 1,745,857 2,228,142
Pennsylvania Infrastructure lnvcstmcm

ABEROTILY . oeetecmeeemee e s e 19,062 20,993 21,739 22418 22,796 213,417 320,425

Total Principal and Interest ................ 451,879 394,756 397,031 1 396,153 387,155 7,547,826 9,574,800
Less: Interest Payments ..., 305,271 298,378 293,368 287,077 271,146 3,191,610 4,646,850
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... 146,608 96,378 103,663 109,076 116,009 4,356,216 4,927,950
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS ... $ 207,691 $ 187,022 5 197,846 5 209716 5 218,704  $ 6,877,695 ¥ 7,898,674

ok
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreemenis are in
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of
future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 1996 (expressed in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented Component Units

Pennsylvania
General Higher Educatien
Long-Term Assistance College and
Obligations Agency University Fands
Fiscal year ending June 30
YOO 7,196 5 5,369 $ 28,971
1998 .. 6,911 5,583 27,568
B0 e s 6,821 3,415 26,545
2000 ettt ey 6,742 5,107 25,376
2001 ......... 6,702 4,999 24,783
Later YEars ........ooercrenieneeee e enes s s e cesees 93,836 63,238 444 528
Total minimum lease Payments ..........coiece oo 128,208 89,711 3TT.T71
Less: amount representing estimated executory costs
included in total minimum lease payments .........oooeeveeeveece e 16,203 e ceen
Net minimum lease PAYMENTS ..o eeeeeeee e eseesrrssessenas 112,005 89,711 577,771
Less: amount representing ierest ..o...ov.vevceieeeeceee e vsevs oo 53,576 34,174 266,596
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS ...oooooveeceeeeeeeevevev. B 58,429 3 55,537 3 311,175
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS ... & 27,170

At June 30, 1996 general fixed assets included $95.8 million of buildings and $2.2 million of equipment being procured by
capital leases. A total of $43.4 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1996 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital projects
currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the
public financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets include $31.5
mitlion of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1996.

The Commonwealth has entered into three lease arrangements with a trustee for the refinancing of previously existing leases and
installment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment. These arrangements provide that the trustee issue
certificates of participation, the proceeds of which allow for immediate payment to Comrmonwealth equipment vendors. This is
not a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are responsible for
securing appropriations to make lease payments to the trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund periodic principal and
interest payments to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use of the leased equipment,
the trustee holds legal title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the certificates are fully funded, legal
title vests with the Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1996, $84.4 million in general fixed assets is being procured under these
master lease arrangements.

Nonrecourse Debt

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to energy conservation and research. Fees
are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent limited
obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by the property
financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity served by the bond
issuance. The PEDA has $121 million in revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1996. The Commonwealth has no obligation for
this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At June 30, 1996 the PEDFA has
$1,061.8 million of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore, neither
the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT.

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the Commonwealth issued $213.7 million in general obligation
bonds, Refunding Series of 1996, with an average interest rate of 5.3 percent to advance refund $204.2 million
of previously issued general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of 6.56 percent. The net refunding
bond proceeds of $216.0 million, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs,
were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As
a result, the bonds refunded are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group. The Commonwealth advance refunded its previously issued bonds to reduce
debt service payable on its general obligation bonds by $9.3 million and to cbtain an economic gain of $9.5
million.

At June 30, 1996 $789 million of general obligation bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Peansylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), discretely presented governmental fund
component units, issued revenue bonds to advance refund $680.1 million of previously issued revenue bonds
as follows (expressed in thousands):

S

RIDC Regional Phila College of University
School Revenue Variable Rate Growth Fund Pharmacy & Science of the Arts
Refunding Bonds Revenue Refunding  Revenue Refunding Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Category Series B of 1996 Bonds Bonds Series 1995 Series of 1995 Series of 1995
Issuing Authomizy ...oovveeeen SPSBA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type oo Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date IsSued .....ooeerevecurrienineens 5-29-96 10-26-95 190-26-95 £1-30-95 12-21.95
Refunding Bonds Principat ... 56,880 $176,800 519,375 526,000 58100
Interest Rate (Refunding} ...... 5.42% 5.76% 4.91% 5.22% 5349%
Refunded Series .......ooeeeeee. School Carnegie Melion U. RIDC Regional PCPS Revenue Bonds College
Revenue Bonds Var. Rate Option Growth Fund Series N Revenue Bonds
Sertes A 1992 Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Series of 1987
First Series 1985* Series of 1985* PCPS Revenue Bonds
Series Q Revenue Bonds
Lease Revenae Series of 1989
Bonds F985-A* College Revenue
Bonds Series A 1989
PCPS Insured
Dormitory Revenue
Bonds
Series of 1985%
Refunded Bonds Principal ..... 56,120 S109,890* / $67,000* $21,385% $2,7657 $2,775 1 $8,920 / 55,655 §$2,650 /54,590
Interest Rate (Refunded) ....... 5.76% 8.82% / Variable 8.94%* 5759/ 6.78%  6.99% 7/ 9.25%* 9.58%/8.11%
Payment to Escrow Agent ..... $6,295 $177,684 522,745 - 321,158 58,033
Debt Service Savings (Loss} . £ 414) 512,869 $2,245 914
Economic Gain (Loss) ........... 5 126) 52,923 $1,399 $641

- * Current refunding.

!
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

NOTE L—Refunded Debt (continued)

U. of Pennsylvania

U, of Pennsylvania

Phila College of

Textiles & Science

Health Services Health Services LaSalle University Health Services College Revenue
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Bonds
Category Series B of 1996 Series A of 1996 Series of 1996 Series A/B/C 1996 Series of 1996
Issuing Authority . PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
4-30-95 4-30-95 5-28-96 6-19-96 £-28-95
Refunding Bonds Principal ... 5114,990 333,445 517,045 $306.150 58.500
Interest Rate (Refunding) ...... 3.79% 5.79% 5.72% 5.85% 8.76%
Refunded Series ... Trustees of the U. of Pennsylvania LaSalle University Revenue Bonds Phila. College of
. of Pennsylvania Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Series A 1989 Textles & Science
Revenue Bonds Series B of 1987* Series of 1988 College Revenpe
Series A of 1987 Univ. Revenze Bonds Bonds
Trustees of the LaSalle University Series of 1989 Series of 1991
U. of Pennsylvania Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds Series of 1993 Univ. Revenue Bonds
Series of 1991% Series of 1991
Revenue Bonds
1991 Series B
Hosp. Revenue Bonds
Series 19858
Hosp. Revenuc Bonds
Series of 1987
Hosp. Variable Rate
Pemand Revenue
Bonds Series 1988
Refunded Bonds Principal ..... 5109975 516,700% f $15,000% 511,385/ 51,320 333,650 1 $108.380 36,295
833,255/ $38.910
$38,630/ 526,755/ $8,100
Intergst Rate (Refunded) ....... 6.52% Variable 7.4% [ Variable 6.60% /7.26% / 6.88% 5.59%
1.3V 1 7.06% 1 6.713%
6.82%
Paymenct to Escrow Agent ..., $113,224 $31,791 $12,394 3301769 56,417
Debt Service Savings {Loss) . $7,519 e - 532,964 5(246)
Economic Gait ..o, $7,336 . e 514,929 57

* Cyrrent refunding.

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs,
were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for
all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group.

The SPSBA and the PHEFA reported advance and current refundings in its component unit financial statements
for the Danville Area School District, the Susquenita School District, the Cumberland County Municipal
Authority, the Montgomery County Higher Education and Health Authority and the Allegheny University
Hospital, which are not reported in the preceding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed from
their General Long-Term Obligations Account Group; however, since the SPSBA and PHEFA did not issue
any new debt, this was not an advance or current refunding transaction of the SPSBA or the PHEFA.
Furthermore, there were no debt service savings nor any economic gain or loss to the SPSBA or the PHEFA.

The PHEFA also reported advance and current refundings in the preceding table for which neither debt service
savings or [oss, nor economic gain or loss were reported. Although the PHEFA may have benefited or suffered
financially as a result of the refundings, no amounts were calculated by the PHEFA because of the variable
rate nature of the bonds.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—Refunded Debt (continued)

At June 30, 1996 $848.5 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in their General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings, for the PHEFA and
the SPSBA. Included are $750.7 million for the PHEFA and $97.8 million for the SPSBA.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA)), a discretely
presented proprietary fund component unit, redeemed prior to maturity $107.8 million of Single Family
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series X, R, X and 1990-27 using undisbursed bond proceeds. The PHFA did not
-issue new debt. The PHFA completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 25
years by $68.9 million and to obtain an economic gain of $19.9 million.

At June 30, 1996 $7.1 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial
statements of the PHFA, have been defeased through refundings.

At May 31, 1996 $656 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financiaf
statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented proprietary fund component
unit, have been defeased through refundings.

At June 30, 1996 $197.8 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial
statements of the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, a discretely presented proprietary fund
component unit, have been defeased through refundings.

At June 30, 1996 $90.7 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial
statements of the State System of Higher Education, a discretely presented college and university fund
component unit, have been defeased through refundings. '

1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and three Special Revenue Funds (Motor
License, State Lottery and Workmen’s Compensation Administration). The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary
Basis)}—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary
basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The beginning unreserved/undesignated fund balance for the General Fund has been restated to account for an
amendment made to the annual budget subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. The restatement is
sumimarized as follows (expressed in thousands):

General
Fund
Unreserved/undesignated fund balance, budgetary basis,
June 30, 1995, as previously stated .......coevveveviveeiecceeenn, $ 428,997
Adjusted for canceled spending authorization ..................... 8,004
Unreserved/undesignated fund balance, budgetary basis,

July 1, 1995, as restated ...ooveeveeeeereeeeeecees e, $ 437,001

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting (expressed in
thousands):

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds
BUDGETARY BASIS:
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other USeS ... $ (280,752) $ 27,099
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue ....ocooovmvevevvveveeeviinnn 832,633 1,296,373
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accountis payable and accrued liabilities ..................... {2,369,744) ( 1,553,644)
To adjust enctmbrances .....ccovvveceescesiioieeeeeeeeaenrns 1,789,871 247,584
Net adjuStIEnts ...ccocvrvee e re e e st eeeeee e 252,760 (9,687)
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under
expenditures and Other USES ...........ccvcveeeerieeeieeeceeeee e e 78,630
TOTAL ALL FUNDS: _
GAARP basis - revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and Other USES ........coovevevevrrvscversmressineeenn, $  (27,992) $ 96,042




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE N — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Commonwealth’s Primary Governiment has seven major Enterprise Funds which provide for a variety of loan programs to business and government
organizations, workmen's compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development loans. The following is a summary of selected financial
information related to these Funds (expressed in thousands):

State Machinery
‘Workmen’s State Volunteer Minerity and Other Total
Sunny Capital Insurance Stores Company Business Equipment  Enterprise  Enterprise
Day Loan (Dec. 31,1995)  (June 25, 1996) Loan Development Lean Funds Funds
OPETating fEVENUES .....oermworreerrserarcoeres s 5200 § 2,726 $ 434,302 5 704798 $ 1,623 5 817 § 1562 § 16407 §1,167435
Depreciation v Ce R 862 5,005 R e e 635 6,592
Operating income (loss) .... (386) 4,085 {165,367 ) 50,231 1,768 {2882) (189) {976) (113,716)
Operating transfers out 43,117 43,117
Net income (Joss) (386) 4,085 {165,367 ) 10,263 1,768 {2.882) (189 ) 854 (151,854)
Increases in contributed capital .........co.c... 15,000 1,366 e Ceae - 2,130 7.300 1,145 26,941
Acquisition and construction of .

CAPIA] BSSELS -ovvvsionresevsir e e seiees e . 251 3,282 . . e 1,439 4,972
Net increase (decrease) in cash . 753 103 (2,964) 50 e 18 75 {52} (2,087)
Total assets 163,194 53,727 1,656,161 192,238 71,675 10,072 45,947 40,257 3,233,271
Bonds and other long-tern liabilites

payable from operating revenues ......... e . 1,463,301 356 e e e N 1,463,657
Total fund eQUILY ..ovverisssermmmrsniariniimies 163,173 53,687 65,620 27,680 71,647 9,884 45,936 34,258 471,885

Lond
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation and medical payments for its employes
injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital claims and for tort
liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employe and general torts. For property losses, the
Commonwealth has a $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance coverage up to $134 million per
occurrence. The Commonwealth is also self-insured- for claims against the Department of Transportation
(transportation claims.) The Commonwealth has established various administrative policies which are intended
to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. No
settlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage during each of the past three fiscal years.

The accrued liability for annuitant medical/hospital claims is determined by an actuary in accordance with
accepted actuarial principles. Accrued liabilities for employe disability, tort and transportation claims are
established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such claims are not
discounted. No accrued liability has been reported for property losses.

AtJune 30, 1996 the accrued liabilities which will be paid with current expendable available financial resources
are reported in the General Fund. Those liabilities which will not be paid with current expendable available
financial resources at June 30, 1996 are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
(GLTOAG). All accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1996 are surnmarized as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Motor
General License
Fund Fund GLTOAG Total

Employe disability .........cceovnunne. $ 133,747 $ ... $ 838,804 § 972,551
Annuitant medical/hospital _....... 32,865 Cea . 32,865
Automobile tort .......occcv v, 2,872 S 11,603 14,475
Employe tort ..o 1,797 cee 16,638 18,435
General tort ..o 1,156 R 34,441 35,597
Transportation .........ceveeeecennennon. - 18,805 216,418 235223
Totals oo $ 172,437 ¥ 18,805 $ 1,117,904 $ 1,309,146

The following summary provides aggregated information on prior year self-insurance liabilities: incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 and reported seif-insurance liabilities at June
30, 1996 (expressed in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1995 Claims Payments 1996

Liability ' Current Prior ' Current Prior | Liability

Employe disability ............... $ 788,745 $251321 $ (141) $ 12278 §$ 55096 $ 972,551
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 31,700 161,061 e 128,196 31,700 32,865
Automobile tort ..., 13,542 2,332 976 767 1,608 14,475
Employe tort ...cooeeeeeernnn. 20,236 881 {150) e 2,532 18,435
General tort ....ocvvvcvvereeereiennne 37,222 422 (321 21 1,705 35,597
Transportation .........occc.eee... 236,973 9,270 2,872 1,481 12,411 235,223

Totals ..o $1.128418 $425287 § 3236 $142,743 $105052 $1,309,146




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—Self-Insurance (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 1994 self-insurance liabilities; incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June
30, 1995 (expressed in thousands): '

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1994 Claims Payments 1995

Liability ' Current Prior || Current Prior | Liability

Employe disability ............... $ 651,278 $206,762 $ 2,672 % 10374 $ 61,593 $ 788,745
Annuitant medical/hospital .. e 177,840 e 146,140 e 31,700
Automobile tort ......ceeeeeee. 11,845 1,273 3,393 501 2,468 13,542
Employe tort ..o, 17,810 769 9,699 5 8,037 20,236
€72 11211 I 14) o AR 33,209 465 4,541 15 978 37,222
Transportation ............cc.ces 218,000 e 18,973 e e 236,973

TOtals oooeeeeiiitcceeenns $ 932,142 $387,109 $ 39278 $ 157,035 §% 73,076 $1,128,418

NOTE P—-COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1996 the Department of Transportation and the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual comritments
of approximately $1,106 million and $167 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass
transit projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and
general obligation bond sales. In addition, the Commonwealth has certain contractual commitments for future
purchases of various goods and services approximating $2.8 billion at June 30, 1996. These commitments are
contingent upon the availability of financial resources.

At June 30, 1996 the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that had not been
disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ... $ 257
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ....ocoooeeeveeeeo 232
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ..., 241

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component units have
commitments to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1996 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:

Primary Discretely Presented
Government Component Units
19T ettt e eme e eoe e $ 201,381 $ 6606
TGOG o.oeeereecreeeeresssesas eeenenae 104,931 648
1999 et 103,063 670
2000 ..ottt 73,615 678
2007 ettt e 44,806 685
Later YEears ..ot 232,049 2,742
Total Minimum Lease Payments......... $ 759,845 $ 6,089

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 amounted to
$255.7 million ($255 million for primary government, $742 thousand for discretely presented component
units).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitmenis and Contingencies (continued)

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normaily
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other
alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities
at June 30, 1996 with respect to torts as described in Note O and as other General Long-Term Obligations with
respect to other matters of litigation in the amount of $132,761 thousand for which the likelihood of an
unfavorable outcome is probable.

Additionally, the Commonwealth has been involved over the past several years in certain legal proceedings
relative to bank taxes which continues into the present year. Other cases that the Commonwealth is currently
vigorously contesting could range from approximately $78 to $961 million, $1 to $318 million, and $2 to $24
million of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds,
respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could
range from $300 thousand to approximately $6 million, $2 to $3 million and zero to $3 million of additional
liabilities for the College and University Funds, Proprietary Funds and a Fiduciary Fund, respectively, and
could result in approximately $3 million of additionat liabilities for Governmental Funds.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings for which accruals have not been made, it is the
opinion of the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the
Commonwealth’s financial position.

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government
in the form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs {which are not included in the
general purpose financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms
and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the éxpenditure of resources
for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial -
and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees. Disallowances
and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth is
currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various
disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $16 to $77 million. The
Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material
effect on the general purpose financial statements.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident
students. Total outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $11.7 billion at June 30, 1996. Under
~ the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankmptcy, and default claims paid to lenders.
Pursuant to this agreement, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there is
compliance with various federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 78 percent to 100 percent depending
upon default rates in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the year ended June 30, 1996, PHEAA's
default rate was in a range that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department.

Lottery Prizes: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including certain
large prizes which require periodic payments to winners for a certain period of time (in some cases throughout
the winners lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). To satisfy its obligation to these prize winners, the
Fund purchases annuity contracts from insurance companies whereby the insurance companies make periodic
payments to prize winners. In the event of insurance company default, the Fund is liable for these payments.
At June 30, 1996 the amount of future prize payments amounts to $2.3 billion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q—CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate
the payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by health care providers
practicing in the Commonwealth. The Fund levies health care provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance
premiurs for basic coverage, to pay claims and administrative expenses paid on behalf of health care providers
during the prior year. The acteariaily computed liability to the health care providers for claims outstanding at
June 30, 1996 totals $1,954.8 million ($1,462.0 million at present value based on the expected payment
pattern and an assumed long-term interest rate of 6 percent). The amount of expendable financial resources
available to pay claims at June 30, 1996 is $135.7 million. This is reported as a fund liability. The remaining
clatms will be funded exclusively through surcharge assessments in future years as claims are settled and
paid; as a result, a financial liability for remaining claims is not reported.

The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees
from underground storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated
with corrective actions or for bodily injury or property damage caused by tank leaks and other releases.
Owners and operators are assessed actuarially determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
claims. The Fund actuary has estimated potential claims of $755 million at June 30, 1996. There are statutory
limits on the extent of the Fund’s liability to participating owners and operators. The Fund has reported assets
and liabilities amounting to $245 million at June 30, 1996; the Fund is not obligated beyond that amount.
Owners and operators will be assessed for any claims exceeding $245 million and no financial liability is
reported for those claims.

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth offers its employes a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are
not available to employes until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts, and
all income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject only
to the claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of
general creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account of
each participant. The Commonwealth has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due
care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes it is unlikely that
plan assets will be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $306 million in assets {at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund,
at December 31, 1995, $301 million relates to primary government employes and $4 million relates to employes
of discretely presented component units. The remaining balance of $1 million relates to organizations not
included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S—JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, and various labor unions representing
Commonwealth employes participate in a joint venture, the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
(PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare benefits for active employes; the PEBTF
is a third party administrator for annuitant medical/hospital benefits. The Commonwealth is required to fund
all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of providing benefits; the unions are not required to make
contributions. Contribution rates and/or amounts are established by collective bargaining agreements and
administrative policies. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, the Commonwealth paid PEBTF over
$608 million in contributions to fund benefits. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity
interest in the PEBTE. At June 30, 1996, the PEBTF reported total assets of $372 million, total liabilities and
benefit obligations of $97 million, and net assets available for benefits of $274 million. During the fiscal
yeat, net assets available for benefits increased by $105 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored
on an ongeing basis; financial stress is not evident. '

Effective July 1, 1996 the Commonwealth entered into a new agreement with AFSCME in which the
Commonwealth will not be required to make contributions to the PEBTF for the months of July through
October 1996. This reduction in contributions is for the Active Plan and is estimated at $140 million which
would reduce the Fund’s net assets available for benefits by a similar amount, Effective November 1, 1996,
the Commonwealth will resume its normal contributions.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

William K. Schantzenbach

Chief Financial Officer

Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

Effective July 1, 1996, the Sunny Day Fund, an Enterprise Fund, has been eliminated through legislation that
transferred the fund assets to the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA), a discretely presented
proprietary component unit.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Air Quality Improvement Fund, the Recycling Fund, the Storage Tank Loan Fund,
all Special Revenue Funds, and the Capital Loan Fund, an Enterprise Fund, were consolidated into a new
fund, the Small Business First Fund.

On July 11, 1996, the Commonwealth passed legislation authorizing the issuance of up to $110 million in
general obligation bonds to pay the Commonwealth's share of all public assistance costs including highways
and bridges, and disaster mitigation costs provided by the Federal government under the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act for the blizzard of January 1996 or the resulting flood emergency.

On October 10, 1996, the Commonwealth issned $550 million in Tax Anticipation Notes, First Series of 1996-
1997. The notes are payable from and secured by the pledges of revenues to be received in the General Fund
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1997. These obligations are due and payable no later than June 30, 1997.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Effective July 1, 1996, by authority of the Pennsylvania State Legislature, the Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority (PIDAY}, a proprietary fund component unit, received transfer of all outstanding loans
of the Sunny Day Fund. As a result, the PIDA assumed 3% loans with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $134 million. In addition to the loans, the PIDA received approximately $19.5 million from the
Sunny Day Fund to be used to satisfy three loans which had been approved but not disbursed by June 30,
1996. -

During July 1996, the PIDA authorized issuance of $83.3 million in Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 (1996 Bonds). The proceeds of the 1996 Bonds will be used to repay the
Commonwealth for the Sunny Day Fund assets acquired on July 1, 1996, with the remaining funds used to
satisfy bond covenant requirements.

On September 12, 1996 the Board of Directors of the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a
proprietary fund component unit, approved the issuance of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series
1996-53, in an amount not to exceed $75 million. The proceeds of the bonds, anticipated to be issued in
November 1996, will be used to fund the purchase of new Single Family Mortgage Loans.

On September 24, 1996, the PHFA issued $75 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series
1996-52. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to partially redeem the PHFA's Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series R, and to fund the purchase of new Single Family Mortgage Loans.

On September 25, 1996, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $25.2 million of Single Family Mortgage
" Revenue Bonds, Series R, using bond proceeds from Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1996-
52. A deferred loss of $503 thousand resulted from the redemption.

The PHFA is required and has committed to redeem prior to maturity $1.6 million of Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series N and O, using mortgage prepayments. These redemptions occured October 1, 1996
and resulted in an extraordinary loss of $31 thousand.

In conformance with the resolutions of several bond issues, the PHFA has committed to redeem prior to
maturity $37.4 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series Y, Z, 1990-28, 1990-29, 1991-30,
1991-32, 1992-33, and 1994-38. These redemptions occurred October 1, 1996 and resulted in an extraordinary
loss of $600 thousand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

On October 18, 1996 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, a proprietary fund component
unit, refinanced the $300 million note purchase agreement dated May 1, 1990 and the $200 million note
purchase agreement dated September 21, 1994 into a $500 million note purchase agreement maturin g November
1, 1997. Interest is the 91-day average Treasury bill plus .60 percent.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are Je gally restricted
to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the payment of prizes to winners in the state lottery, for property tax and rent
assistance to the elderly, for mass transit fare subsidies, and for a partial rebate of drug and medical costs incurred by the
eiderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge improvement, design and maintenance, for the purchase of
Rights-of-Way, for aviation activities, for transportation licensing and safety activities, for payment of subsidies for
construction and maintenance of roads, and for financing Pennsylvania State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — to accouni for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. The Fund assesses insurance companies and self-
insured businesses a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these Acts.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — 1o account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of
the Commonwealth's transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, an additional motor vehicle
lease tax, and a motor vehicle rental fee.

Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund — to account for a limited pharmaceutical assistance program for the Commonwealih’s
senior citizens who are 65 years of age or older.

Water Facilities Loan Fund — to account for the implementation of the water project loan referendum that authorizes the
Commonwealth to approve loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement of
water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Repayments of principal and interest from loans
are transferred to the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund — 1o account for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout
Pennsylvanta, for grants and loans for industrial and small business development, for acquisition of equipment for vocational
programs in secondary schools, and for agricultural and recreational programs.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid
waste is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection
and propagation of game and aquatic life.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Other — to account for programs related to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous

Commonwealth activities. This other category is an aggregation of thirty-two individual special revenue funds.

There are a total of forty-two individunal special revenue funds.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor

License Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds

issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and

small business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic
Revitalization Fund.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction
and improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities
Loan Fund.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for
the acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the

General Fund. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual debt service funds.

There are a total of fourteen individual debt service funds.
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Capital Projects Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other public
organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for the proceeds of general obligation bonds to meet the financing costs of capital
projects specifically itemized and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties for the repair, expansion,
construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multicounty regional prison facilities, or for
the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing programs.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to improve and
expand Commonwealth and community parks, recreation facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves

and wildlife habitats.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to meet the financing costs for the
acquisition, development and improvement to Commonwealth land and water facilities.

There are a total of four individual capital projects funds.




COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1996
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
ASSETS
CSH et v $ 4 $ 1 s ... $ 1 $ 6
Temporary inVestments .....cc...ccovveveeereiereceemme. 188,059 6,630 71,553 3,193 269.435
Receivables, net:
Accrued INErest ......vv et eeeeece s 806 30 312 13 1,161
Due from other funds ........oevevecereeeeee e, 952 2,871 3,823
Due from other governments ........e.eecoceveereeene.. 19 19
TOTALASSETS ..ot rvsens $ 189,840 $ 6,661 $ 74,736 $ 3,207 $ 274,444
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......... S 46,457 $ $ 4,629 $ 24 $ 51110
Due 1o other funds ... vvevie s 1 R 13 14
Due to other governments 5,382 269 5,651
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..ot 31,840 4,898 37 56,775
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ......occeeeeieeeceoe v 424,026 773 8,159 257 433,215
Unreserved:
Designated for:

Capital PrOJECES cooeeeeeeertvree s e 5,888 61,679 2,913 70,480
Undesignated (deficit) .ooeieeieceerveeseenseen. (286,026 ) .. ce (286,026)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ......ocooveeeee. 138,000 6,661 69,838 3,170 217,669

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .. $ 189,840 5 6,661 $ 74,736 $ 3,207 $ 274,444




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Capital Projects Fands
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Keystone Pl
Local Recreation, Land and i
Capital Criminal Park and Water P
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
1
REVENUES: "
TEXES ceeereeemeemeeemreeeemeemmesnms e mimsstec et st sinastsssssienires B cen 5 e $ 34,492 5 .. $ 34492
Intergovernmental SRR 6,149 . e 30 6,179
Charges for sales and services ... 45,341 cee cen e 45,341
Investment iNCOME .ociineecis s 3,288 597 2,680 173 6,738
Other .o, depertarse s cenn 226 e 560 786
TOTAL REVENUES ...t 54,778 823 37,172 763 93,536
d
EXPENDITURES:
General government - rerereenereeneaenen 585 e e 10 595
Protection of persons and property ... ceis 11,731 e 1,000 12,731
Conservation of natural resources ........cunnieninns ceen ce 29,044 e 29,044
Economic development and assistance ... 39,240 et cee e 39,240 vy
TrANSPOTTALON ..cceveerersrassesssenssersenensessnssserssssrnsens 96,124 T e e 96.124 P
Capital QUELAY .cocvemeerne i i ss e 239,214 P e 186 239,400
Debt service: :
Interest and fiscal charges ..., cees ce i8 e 18
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .....coceiiieerericenne 375,163 11,731 29,062 1,196 417,152
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) L
EXPENDITURES .......ocoremnniniemmne s (320,385 ) (10,908 ) 8,110 (433) (323616) _ v
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds ........ . et er s 328,155 5,921 23,684 e 357.760 .
Operating transfers Ot ... 878 e e (173) 705 ) f
—_— I
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) omeeeececcnrerrmecneecenneeas 329,033 5,921 23,684 (173} 358.465
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND o
OTHER USES ......ooioeeeerrccreeneerencreenerereeens 8,648 (4,987) 31,794 (606 ) 34,849 .
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1995 ..o 129,352 11,648 38,044 3,776 182,820 [
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,199 .........cccccvuenn. $ 138,000 $ 6,661 $ 69,838 $ 3170 5 217,669 \

—90— : 1



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

—g]—



Enterprise Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Sunny Day Fund — to account for and provide assistance to the Governor and the Economic Development Partnership to
provide low interest loans to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the Commonwealth.

Capital Loan Fund — to account for and provide low interest loans to businesses for the purchase of land, buildings,
machinery, equipment and for working capital.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — 10 account for and provide workmen’s insurance to private employers in the
Commonwealth, including those unable to obtain coverage from private insurance firms.

State Stores Fund — (o account for the general operation of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses inclade all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the Liquor Store System and enforcement of the Liquor Control
Law.

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide loans to minority business and for operating expenses
of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments, transfers
from the General Fund and interest.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest machinery and equipment financing to
Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value added-capacity. Sources of revenue include
loan repayments, transfers from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund and interest earnings.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers and
vocational rehabilitation services and foans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development
enterprises to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. This other category is an aggregation of six individual enterprise
funds.

There are a total of thirteen individual enterprise funds.
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Internal Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

H
i
{
H

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department

or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions.

Manufacturing Fund — 1o account for the manufacture and sale of goods by inmates in the institutions of the Department
of Corrections.

There are a total of two individual internal service funds. B




COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Temporary INVESIMENES ....cc..coecvrvmvirvnsersersaessssesinennns

Receivabies, net:

ACCOUILS .ot cieieteeece e s v acrrrs s s rare st s b e ar s sbasans

Accrued interest...

Other oo,
Due from other funds .............
Due from component units .....
Due from other governments ..
INVENIOTY vovvmreicerieccs i
Fixed assetls
Less: accumulated depreciation.....

OHNEL ASSEIS «..oeeeeeeer et s rrerarssrrnerarssrs e s b abs s et

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payabie and accrued liabilities .................
Due to other funds ....ueervririsneiinciisicieeereenee
Due to other SOVErNMENS ..._....vccvvevrcervrrnrsessnans
Notes payable ..o s

TOTAL LIABILITIES ... rcvenns

Fund Equity:
Contributed capital ......o.ccooooeeeeee
Retained earnings:

UDTESEIVEL w vt ceie it et st e m e et e e e ceene s et ensresres

TOTAL FUND EQUITY ..oiiiieiceeneeneeeesameesns s remesaes

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ...

Purchasing

5 175
12,810

26

65

7,015

812

107

2,087

46,932
(22,702)

883

$ 48,214

$ 8626
670

13

1410

10,719

9,219

28,276
37,495
$ 48214

Manufacturing Total

b3 106 3 285

3,266 16,076

. 26

13 78

135 135

2,866 9.881

g 820

33 140

13,014 15,101

20,907 67.839
(10,406 ) (33,108)

29 912

$ 29971 $ 78,185

$ 45616 $ 13,242

355 1,025

22 35

1,410

4,993 15,712

9,219

24,978 53,254

24,978 62,473

$ 29,971 $ 78,185




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales And SETVICES ...ooeoeeeeeeerieerestcere e et et ceaeseee e s e eeeme s nebrsnnssestesns
Other ....

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ...

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and SETVICES ..o.vieeee et et enes
Depreciation ......cccuu
Provision for uncollectible accounts

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ...
OPERATING INCOME ...

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESLMENE INCOITIE ..o et eeev e cceieeeernsse s rners s s e ses e e sane
Interest expense
OMHET e et eses e sre s evse b b ensn s aens

NONOPERATING REVENUES ............

RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1995 ..ocrirvnvrivrmsncsssieesnssanns

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1996 ........ccooooivreeeenene

—100-—

Purchasing Manufacturing Total
§ 80,704 $ 31,209 $ 111,913
174 174
80,704 31,383 112,087
69,932 28,307 98,239
6,522 1,206 7,728

1 i
76,454 _ 29,524 105,978
4,250 1.859 6,109

673 88 761
{364) (364)
86 14 100
395 102 497
4,645 1,961 6,606
23,631 23017 46,648
$ 28276 $ 24978 $ 53,254

[

-

|
[




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchasing Manufacturing Total
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
OPERATIONS:
OPErating INCOTINIE Lvveeererierieinssiasieccssstermeeeeserneesssesssssssmessssss s st esssemrans $ 4,250 $ 1,859 $ 6,109
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (1oss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
DEPIECIALION 1eveveirrreiesinserectee et e eene st sesesas s ares st s cssam s raseeneas 6,522 1,206 7,728
Provision for uncollectible accounts .........occoveeeeivemeceeieeenceeeeon R 11 11
NONOPETALNG TEVERUE 1.viviverevesissnesssssrarcsieacesemerensseeessesssasssssssessemees 17 120 137
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in 1eCeiIVables ... ivvereeene et (14) (96) (110)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds oo neviieceeeeeeeeene 6,296 (518 5,778
Decrease in due from component units ........... 165 22 187
Decrease in due from other govermnments .... 93 24 117
(Increase) decrease in inventory ................. 46 (446} (400)
Decrease {increase) in OtHET @SSEL5 .uviiviiieereereereeeseeeeeeeeneaeaeeaen 1,324 (4) 1,320
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued Habilities ... (2,082) 1,247 (833)
Increase {decrease) in due 1o other funds ........ccoevvveoveceeciieeeeee (2,748) 161 (2.587)
Increase in due to other GOVEIMMENES ....co oo en e sins 1 4 5
Decrease in deferred reVEIUE .o.oivoceee e R (1) (13
TOTAL ADIJUSTMENTS ..o - 9,620 1,730 11,350
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES ....... 13,870 3,589 17459
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on debt obligations (1,322) e (1.322)
Interest paid on debt obligations ... iiiciiiiesines — (139) e (159)
r NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
: FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... reeer v cisrcsss s (1,481) s {1.481)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid on debt obligations ... ceres s (205) . (205
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (13,327} (1,648) (14,975}
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ......cooooeevieeeeveiee e 1,517 e 1,517
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..o, (12,015) (1,648) (13,663)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESTIMENLS .couiiiiiiiieei et ases s {46,549 (17,742) {64,291 )
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments ..........ccocceee..... 45,590 15,633 61,223
‘. INVESLIMENT IMCOME waeevee e ereieseieesis et et ee et e e e ses s enemn e 673 88 761
E NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES ............. (286) ( 2,021) (2,307)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH oo 88 (80) 8
CASH, JULY, 1, 1995 oo eeeee et eene e nassssansbessereen o1 186 277
CASH, JUNE 30,1996 ........oooeeeeeeeieccientes et es e ne et anen $ 179 3 106 $ 285
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Trust and Agency Funds

‘Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and agency funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
These include expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and agency funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer and employe taxes, for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to transfer and receive monies from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to
individuals who are insured by an insclvent stock insurance company and for the administrative costs to administer the
program.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses
over $100,000 to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund (no
longer in existence).

Tuition Payment Fund — to account for the tuition account program, which provides for the advance purchase of college
tuition credits for the beneficiary to attend a college or university at a future time.

Other — 1o account for financial assistance to public schools for certain repairs or alterations to buildings and for
reimbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgements against any person licensed by the Real Estate Commission.
This other category is an aggregation of two individual expendable trust funds.

PENSION TRUST FUND:

State Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members
of the State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

AGENCY FUNDS

Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect and administer funds for a program to provide claim
payments to owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective action, for
bodily injury or for property damage caused by a release from underground storage tanks.

Statutory Liguidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
policyholders and stockholders.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are
deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premiums tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance
companies conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities
must pay these monies to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — 1o collect a portion of the insurance company tax revenues for distribution to municipalities
for distribution to police and fire pension funds:

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to collect annual surcharges levied on health care providers to
make professional liability insurance available at a reasonable cost to health care providers.

INVEST Program For Local Governments — to pool and invest amounts owned by local governments and school
districts. Participation in the Program is voluntary.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the
Federal Government. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual agency funds.

-3

There are a total of six individual expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund and fifteen individual agency funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Trust and Agency Funds

June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash with fiscal AZENIS ...vevreeeseiiemeees e
Temporary INVESIIIENIS .oveveverereecceerere e eeeeeerene
Long-term inVeStMEnts .......coocriaereeesererenseeesescesenveeni

Receivables, net:

TAXES . ooeveereerieeeaeereeeere s cee e e sb e et st eee e e e e

Accounts ...............
Accrued mterest ...

Less: accumulated depreciation ..

OMRET BSSEIS ..vvvveeiriiisiiriesec e e ceor e e seeee e e eesseasssesmeasens

LIABILITYES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities
Tax refunds payable .......

Due to other funds ...ceececiccvceeeeee e
Due t0 other SOVEIMMERLS ....eveer e
Deferred IEVeNUE ... st

Fund Balance:
Reserved for:

ENcumbrances ..o emceecioic et e e
Pension benefits ............... tebpeereaeeaeeeanneensanns
Long-term inVestments ... reeeeeceeeeeerceeenees

Unreserved:
Designated for:

Undesignated ........cceceeue,

TOTAL FUND BALANCE ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Expendable Pension Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Funds Total
$ 288 3 5 4916 3 5,204
2,061,975 cees 14,856 2,076,831
321,231 504,691 1,213,867 2,039,789
190,136 15,674,568 405,233 16,269,937
327,106 4,163 331,269
7,792 cees 216,390 224,182
5,030 77,772 4,889 87,691
e 107 835 192
2,542 88,285 24,520 115,347
108 2,770 2,878
16,416 0,415 25,831 -
- 759 759
(287) (287)
e 202,106 202,106

$ 2932624

$ 16,358,080

$ 2,091,025 $21,381,729

$ 133677 $ 12,891 $ 340404 § 486972
3,563 ce e 3,563

21 2 2,399 2422

3.910 645,880 649,790

194 194

650 e 630

R 1,102,342 1,102,342
142,015 12,893 2,091,025 2,245,933
9,432 ce 9,432
e 16,345,187 16,345,187
190,136 190,136
3,353 3,353
2,587,688 2,587,688
2,790,609 16,345,187 19,135,796

$ 2932624

$ 16,358,080

$ 2,091,025 $21,381,729
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Expendable Trust Funds L
June 30, 1996
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands} k‘
Workmen's ) 1‘
Compensation Catastrophic :
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits Tuition Lo
Compensation Trust Continuation Payment Other Total
: |
ASSETS i
Cash . 5 e 3 113 5 1 3 170 S 4 3 288 i
Cash with fiscal agents ...... . 2,061,975 e - e - 2,061,975
Ternporary investments - 214 252,569 33,286 30,371 4,791 321,231
Long-term investments ... e 166,322 Ve 23,814 A 190,136
Receivahles, net: .
TAKES . .ceveeeermemsrcsn rrmescememasn s e meemesan st seaoces 327,106 327,106 -
ACCOuRIs ....... . 1,795 e 5,997 e e 7,792
ACCTUET INLETESE ..cuveeverereseces eesceesecmaeansnescomecaees 9 4,540 144 315 22 3,030 N
Due from other furds 2,540 e o 2 e 2,542 :
Due from component units 108 - e e e 108 i
Due frotn other governments ... 16,416 . e e e 16,416 -4
TOTAL ASSETS . 3 2,410,163 $ 423544 5 39428 5 54672 3 4,817 $ 2,932,624 ]
'%
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ’
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliges .......... $ 73368 § 27905 5 32324 8 50 $ 30 $ 133,677 B
Tax refunds payable ... 3,563 R e s s 3,563 v f
Due to other funds ..... 2 i 3 10 e 21 i
Due 10 other governments . 3,908 R e 2 e 3,910
Deferred revenue ........... e 194 A 194
Advances from other funds .. 650 e 650 E
TOTALLIABILITIES ..o e 80,841 27,906 32,332 906 30 142,015 i
Fund Batance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances e 9,426 e 6 e 9.432
Long-term investments ....v.eoniomeens . 166,322 el 23,814 . 190,136
Unreserved: tiy
Designated for: B
6151 S e v ce e 3,353 3,353 i
Undesignated .....ccouumieeennsenroran 2,329,322 219,890 7,096 29,946 1.434 2,587,688
TOTAL FUND BALANCE ....coo oo cccnerrec s 2,329,322 395,638 7,096 53,766 4,787 2,790,609 .
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND |
FUND BALANCE $ 2410,163 5 423544 $ 39428 $ 54672 S 4,817 $ 2,932,624
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
E Workmen's
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Luss Benefits Tuition
Compensation Trust Continuation Payment Other Total
REVENUES:
Taxes b3 5,765 5 ... 3 e $ e $ e 5 5,765
Unemployment taxes 1,661,526 . e e e 1,661,526
Licenses and fees ..... e 35,494 33,163 21,069 419 90,147
Intergovernmental 20,860 R e Co RPN 80,860
Investment income ... 134,950 26,626 2,105 2,527 269 166,477
OHET ccvvevescrnrrinsanren 432 28 460
TOTALREVENUES ..cooviiimincenierienenens 1,883,533 62,120 35,270 23,624 688 2,005,235
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 14,852 1,466 1,651 PN 17,969
Protectton of persons and property e 12,993 31,598 e 481 45,072
Pubiic health and welfare .................. 1,804,647 e e e 1,804,647
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ....oooo e 1,804,647 27,845 33,064 1,651 481 1,867,688
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ........ 78,886 34,275 2,206 . 21973 207 137,547
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Operating ransfers oul ..o oo veeeeces e s s . {25,333) A e (25,333)
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES ..o oo rvvecrrrreisrisressennns 78,886 34,275 (23,127) 21,973 . 207 112,214
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1995 ..oovivicnnirininnns 2,250,436 361,363 30,223 31,793 4,580 2,678,395

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,1996 ... $ 2,329,322 § 395638 $ 7,086 $ 53,766 $ 4,787 $ 2,750,609
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
INDEMNIFICATION FUND

ASSETS

Temporary iNVeStHIEIILS .....ooeveeearaerr e eeeneeerecenene
Receivables, net:
ACCTUSH INEETESE ..o e ceretae et b e e

TOTALASSETS ...

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......cvieenens
Due to other funds ..o
Due to other SOVEmMMERLS ..ot eee
Other HABHUES .vvveeceaccee e seceecervecescemeem ene e eeecece

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...

STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS
L0 OO
Cash with fiscal agents .......
Temporary investments ...
Long-term investments ... s
Receivables, net:
ACCOURLS «.ooeiiiiriateerrierrrsssersreesssresananssesesrnessrmnssssssae
ACCTUEA INLETESE cuvrverrrrerecnreernearrrrrresrrssemmeresseenseseanees
Due from other funds ..o
OUDET ASSELS c.ueve e e cecemeemeeneerorenn s e e rnnens s sene s eermnenesaes

TOTALASSETS ..o

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities ....c...ceceecee..
Due to other funds ...
Other Habilities ...ooceeeieiee i

TOTALLIABILITIES ... ...

DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND
{December 31)
ASSETS

Cash with fiscal agents ....
Temporary investments ...
Long-term ivestmMEntS .o i sesnssssnsss e
Receivables, net:

Accrued INEErest ..o

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds ....cceeceiiniiiiiniisssseseesseer e

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...

Balance Balance
July 1, 1995 Additions Deductions June 30, 1996
$ 1 $ 105,256 $ 105,256 $ 1
155,871 98,138 9,948 244,061
769 11418 11,100 1,087
$ 156,641 $214812 $ 126,304 $ 245,149
$ 64,796 $ 5,680 $ 64,244 $ 6232
21 11 21 11
1 1 1 1
© 91,823 154,200 7.118 233,905
$ 156,641 $ 159,892 $ 71,384 $ 245,149
$ $ 129,797 $129,797 $ ...
14,851 14.851
193,575 167,488 193,575 167.488
76,113 218,312 167,488 126.939
46,392 151,020 3,702 193,710
5,632 905 5,632 203
180 452 180 452
99,715 105,078 8,564 196.229
$ 421,600 - $787,903 $ 508,938 % 700.574
$ 143 $ ... 3 143 5 ..
3 259 3 259
421,463 289,065 10,213 700.315
$421,609 $ 289,324 $ 10,359 $ 700,574
3 1 $ 330,669 $ 330,669 $ 1
4 5 4 5
12,499 47,644 31,859 28,284
206,797 126,106 54,889 278,014
52 652 643 61
193 85 193 85
$ 219,546 $505,161 $ 418,257 $ 306,450
$ 219,463 $ 156,919 $ 70,024 $ 306,358
83 92 83 92
$ 219,546 $ 157,011 $ 70,107 $ 306,450

—108—

)

LS




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds — (continued)
' For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
July 1, 1995 Additions Deductions June 36, 1996
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
CaSN ettt e s e 5 .. $ 110,554 $ 110,554 5 ...,
Temporary inVEStMERNIS ....coovecevveeeeeres e sser oo 54,607 56,140 55.985 34,762
Receivables, net:
Accrued inte;est ........................................................ 300 251 300 251
TOTALASSETS ..o $ 54907 $ 166,945 $ 166,839 $ 55,013
LIABILITIES
Due to other Tands ......ccceeeeeeervviviecsieeees oo $ 300 $ 251 $ 300 $ 251
Due to other governments .............. 54,607 54,569 54,414 54,762
TOTALLIABILITIES ... $ 54907 $ 54,820 $ 54714 $ 55,013
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
Cash v R | $277.656 $ 277,657 % .
Temporary inVeStMentS .....ooooovveeeee oo 119,764 140,805 138,936 121,613
Receivables, net:
ACCIUEA INTETEST uvvureecieveeeeee et e ee e 611 3,158 3,197 572
Due from other fUnds ..........ocoeeececneeeeeeeeeeeereersnsnens 263 299 263 299
TOTALASSETS .o $120,639 $421,918 $ 420,073 $122,484 .
LIABILITIES
Due t0 other funds .........ocoeeeeeeeeee e e h 1 3 e h 1 3 R
Due to other governments —.........ccoeeveeevovrvvreeveeeenen.. 120,638 136,851 135.005 122,484
TOTAL LIABILITIES .......occcovvvvmrnnennn. $ 120,639 $ 136,851 $ 135,006 $122,484
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS
D et et ee et v e $ 20 $291,832 $291,343 % 509
Temporary IRVESHTIENLS ....ovveeeereeceeeeeeereereeseeeemenssienaan 103,539 321,377 284,755 140,161
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES oot ares st ee e eeeeseeaeeee e neen 1,214 3,922 1,214 3,922
Accrued IMETEst ... seeseete e 496 7,077 6,956 617
TOTALASSETS ..o $ 105,269 $ 624,208 $ 584,268 $ 145,209
" LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................... $ 4597 $ 10,678 $ 5,892 $ 9383
Due to other fands .......occcovevcrneenveeressrsreesee e 47 79 47 79
Due to other govemments ..., 5 8 5 &
Other HabilItes ..cococeeeeieeeeer vt enevreersss s s 100,620 291,195 256,076 135,739
TOTAL LIABILITIES ......ccccoeeierivct e $ 105,269 $ 301,960 $ 262,020 $ 145,209
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds — (continued) i
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA f ~j
(Expressed in Thousands) . -
' Balance Balance A
INVEST PROGRAM FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS July 1,1995 Additions Deductions June 30, 1996
{December 31} :
ASSETS ' B
Temporary INVESMERLS ..evvercrvececereressesisessiseverenees & 271,991 3 1,743,924 $ 1,598,347 $ 417,568
Receivabies, net: o
ACCTUEH INLETESE e eeeeersvsssssssresereoemmeeeeseceneeseeeseeenes - 1,276 e 1,276 o
TOTALASSETS .o $ 271,991 31,745,200 $1,598,347 $ 418,844 5
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..o § 676 $ 1,971 $ 676 5 1,971
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements ....... 16,872 - 16,872 e
Due to other ZOVEIMMENS ... csiinsinns 254,443 1,741,953 1,579,523 416,873
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... $ 271,991 $1,743924 $ 1,597,071 $ 418,844 '
OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash ..ottt 3 4,525 $ 525494 $ 525614 $ 4,403 B
Temporary investments 38,481 439,474 438,027 39,930 ;
Long-term investments 288 e 8 280
Receivables, net: .
TAXES w.vvvvvoenessseessassemssseeee e seasasessesssssseransesssrasasesneenss 2,596 30,365 28,798 4,163 P
AcCounts .....ceoecveeacis 16,620 18,758 16,620 18,758 i
Accrued INErest e eeseseesiseenesesnes 128 120 128 120
Due from other funds....... 5,045 23,769 5,045 23,769 o
OHHET BSSELS 11 eesenerereceeessesssemmsenessssssssssassimssssssssres 5,646 5,877 5,646 5,877 |
TOTALASSETS oot invineneemes & 13,329 $ 1,043,859 $ 1,019,886 $ 97,302 :
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .....cocevvveeee.. 14,962 § 17,860 $ 16,362 $ 16460 ,‘
Due 10 other fUNS vvove oo eesae e 158 1,610 61 1,707 <l
Due to other governments.... 31.476 442 601 422,325 51,752
Oher HABIES .oveeeeerereecemeerereseeece et seaeseeranresneseeraensnas 26,733 975,497 974,847 27,383 -4
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... i § 73,329 $ 1,437,568 $ 1,413,595 $ 97302 f
TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS P
CASI coeeeeeeree e eeee s eesemenenan b assssassssnssessssrnserre B 4,548 $1,771,258 $1,770,890 $ 4,916 e
Cash with fiscal agents ... 4 14,856 4 14,856
Temporary investments ... 950,327 3,014,992 2,751,452 1,213,867
Long-term investments ......c.oovreunevrvens eerteenaantenanneanes 283,200 344,418 222385 405,233 P
Receivables, net: C
Taxes .......... eeeeteneesiesereeberpare e s e ans e sen s 2,596 30,365 28,798 4,163
ACCOUDES «..eeeeaeenemiececeeeneesneesesseseennsnnersmasanens susasnss 64,226 173,760 21,536 216,390 :
Accrued interest ... 7,988 24,857 27,956 4,889 Pl
16711 S 193 85 193 85
Due from other fURAS.....coccvvvee i rreeneas 5,488 24,520 5,488 24,520
OLHET ASSETS ceeevrvmemeeieereceeres st cesessesermemer e sermsnnmrobesrsnnss 105,361 110,955 14,210 202,106 !
TOTALASSETS ..ot $ 1,423,931 $ 5,510,006 $4,842.912 $2,091,025
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ... $ 304,637 $ 193,108 $ 157,34] $ 340,404 P
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements ....... 16,872 e 16,872 e ;
Due t0 Other AINAS ...oo..oooeiierrrr e ceereee e semeaens 613 2,302 516 2,399 t
Due to other governments........... 461,170 2,375,983 2,191,273 645,880 _
Other Kabilities ..........oummmmere 640,639 1,709,957 1,248,254 1,102,342 P
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. .o $1.423,531 $ 4,281,350 $3,614,256 $2,091,025 o
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DESCRIPTION

i
i
i
oo

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for general government puposes. These include all fixed assets except those accounted
for in proprietary and pension trust funds. ¢

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance : ,
July 1, June 30,
1995 Additions Retirements 1996
o
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: i_ \
Land oo $ 241,269 $ 3,469 $ e $ 244738
BUIlAINgS ooeeeeeeeeceeereeesereeeet e 2,693,616 215,337 1,220 2,907,733 ‘}
Improvements other than buildings ...... 196,895 32,670 e 229,565 i
Fumniture, machinery and equipment.... 552,997 78,217 54,313 576,901 e
3,684,777 320,693 55,533 3,958,937 N
Construction in progress ... eeeeens 231,257 132,552 e 363,809 3
Total General Fixed Assets ........... $ 3,916,034 $ 462245 $ 53,533 $ 4322746 .
INYESTMENT IN GENERAL : €
FIXED ASSETS: o !
Acquired on or before June 30, 1986 ...  § 2,003,705 $ 20 $ 20,502 $ 1,983,223 o
|
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from:
General fund revenues ......o..ccveeveeene. 592,908 203,708 19,485 867,131
General obligation bonds................ 760411 2,794 e 763,205
Federal grants ........cccocvvvmviccniecnnenee 33,942 334 3,148 31,128 g
Special revenue funds .......cococeeeenne 285,726 32,837 12,398 306,165 ;
E o) T Ta T ) 4TS 7,841 e - 7.841
CONfiSCAtioNS oo 244 e e 244 ! ;\
L
FOtal SOULCES .oovvreeerersemrresssssarieens 3,684,777 329,693 55,533 3,958,937
. [
Construction in Progress ... 231,257 132,552 . 363,809 '
Total Investment in General Fixed
ASSELS oot ceesetes e e ene e eaean $ 3,916,034 $ 462,245 $ 55,533 $ 4,322,746

Fanding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired on or before June 30, 1986 are not available. e
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SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1996
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Furniture
Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Totat
FUNCTION :
General ZOVEINMEN ....oivvvverirecnesitec e e e $ 9,792 $ 454,935 $ 23,006 $ 47,080 $ 534,903
Protection of persons and property 9,089 1,152,005 121,280 77,325 1,359,699
Public health and welfare .........ccocceveeceeeeviennnn. 2954 576,733 18,132 88,246 686,065
Public education ......cceocoveeremince e 17,453 597,219 49,418 3,112 667,202
Conservation of natural resources ............ . 202,104 59,066 10,996 22,196 294,362
Economic development and assistance .... e R S 358 358
Transportation .......ceeeeeeeeeeeereereenn 3,346 67,775 6,643 338,584 416,348
TOTALS ALLOCATED TO
FUNCTIONS ...cimmmessivevisene e 5 244,738 $2.907,733 $229,565 $576,901 3,958,937
ConStIuclion il PrOZIESS ......vucvceeeereerrerarssssnserssens 363.809
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ......oooeeeeeee. $ 4322746

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thouwsands)
Bifurcation
of
Balance Department of Balance
July 1, Envirenmental Transfers Transfers June 30,
1995 Resources Additions Retirements In Qut 1996

General OVEIMMENL ... 3 547028 ..o % 3692 % 30405 $ 18555 5 3968 § 534.903
Protection of persons and property ......... 1,089,408 11,270 264,855 8,423 6,736 4207 1,359,699
Public health and welfare ............ccc........ 666,717 e 28,266 187 250 8,981 686,065
Public education ......ccvvvvereeceeieceene s 669,429 e 20 2,247 e R 667,202
Conservation of natural resources .......... 305,777 (11,270) 6,083 3,868 1,355 3,715 294 362
Economic development and assistance .. 406 e R e e 48 358
Transportation ..........ceeceecenesessenenes 405,951 e 26,777 10,403 e 5,977 416,348
3,684,777 e 329,693 55,533 26,896 26,896 3,958,937
Construction in progress .......coowevvrn.- 231,257 e 132,552 . e AU 363,809
TOTALS ..o, $ 3916034 § ... 5462245 5 55,533 $ 26,896 5 26,896 § 4,322,746

On July 1, 1995 the Department of Environmental Resources (DER) was divided into two new agencies: the Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP} and the Department of Conservation and Natvral Resources (DCNR). As a result of this bifurcation, $11,270 (in thou-
sands) of general fixed assets from the predecessor DER became the property of the DEP. The function of these assets has been changed
from “conservation of natural resources” to “protection of persons and property.” The remaining assets of the predecessor DER became the
property of the DCNR and continue to be reported as part of “conservation of natural resources.”
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA TABLE 2 ' ;
' For the Last Ten Fiscal Years -

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : ‘

[ (Expressedin Th ds) ] ‘r
For The )

Fiscal Year

Ended June 30 Net Bonded Debt Population Debt Per Capita
1986 $ 4,529,393 11,784 $ 384
1987 4,558,839 11,812 386
1988 4,698,645 11,847 397
1989 4,705,202 11,866 397
1990 4,633,507 11,882 390
1991 ' 4,787512 11,958 . 400 SO
1992 4,873,542 11,990 406
1993 5,040,938 12,030 419
1994 5,100,012 12,052 423 .
1995 5,040,662 12,072 418 ‘

SOURCE: Population Information — U.S. Department of !
Commerce, Bureau of the Census Voo
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RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TABLE 3
FOR GENERAL BONDEP DERT
TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYL.VANIA

| — {Expressed in Thousands) —

Debt Service
For The Reguirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
Ended Juge 30 . General Fund Expenditures @ %
1987 $ 371,702 $ 12,395,674 3.00
1988 393,907 13,180,073 2.9%
1989 381,617 13,949,111 : 274
1990 450,752 15,137,774 2.98
1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 521,875 19,540,459 2.67
1993 497,045 19,986,749 2.49
1994 512,094 21,060,058 243
1995 525,889 22,467,672 234
1996 551,133 23,480,336 2.35

¥ Excludes encumbrances included in “Totat Expenditures” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN ' TABLE 4

As of August 31, 1996 o
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ) ‘3
Average annual tax revernues deposited in the previous five .
TISCAL YEATS erueveieercrcnemerersenssrese s e ssacse s e e esoene e $ 18,895,078,079 C
Constitttional fACtOr ... vuiveiricrcieereceree e e ecee s cer e e e mnesereneas X 1.75
a
Constitutiontal debt lint for debt incurred without the
approval of the electors ... 33,066,386,638
Less outstanding net debt (non electorate approved) ............ 3,866,564,569
Legal debt Margin ..o eeeeereeaneas $ 29,199,822,069

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution, which provides: 3 ,

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the provisions of this -
section. f

(1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or natural disas- F
ter, or to implement unissued authority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article. :

(2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes having a matu-
rity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the same fiscal year, and (ii) incur
debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures within the term of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically iternized in the law authorizing such debt, if the question
whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a majority of those voting on the
question.

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital budget o
if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-guarters times the average of
the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified by the Aunditor General. For the purposes
of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt incurred under clauses (1) and (2)(i), or debt incurred under A
clause (2)(ii) if the criginal debt would not be so considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General |
Assembly shall so provide in the law anthorizing such debt. ]

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31, 1996.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission®
{Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue i 3
Ended Gross Operating Available for (o Debt Service Requirements n
May 31 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1987 % 180,692 3 101,692 $ 79,000 $ 2,299 $ 46,500 § 48,799 1.62
1988 221,807 100,873 120,932 3,225 56,514 59,739 2.02
1989 245,192 105,619 139,573 4,070 58,789 62,859 222
1990 252,373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73,051 196,991 70
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 .94
1992 312,079 113,217 198,862 7,450 76,628 84,078 2.37
1993 329,452 134,844 194,608 11,595 65,600 77,195 2.52
1994 344,617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2.51
1995 375,754 146,325 229,429 15,715 72,548 88,263 2.60
1996 389,774 162,150 227,624 23,900 71,623 95,523 2.38
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority®
(Expressed in Thonsands)
For the
Fiscal i
E\:::?eil Gross Ogrr:t?n £ J]::;ilk:bv]?f;i Debt Service Requirements |
June 30 Revennes Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1987 $ 23,370 $§ 1,574 $ 21,796 $ 8620 $ 12433 § 21,053 1.04
1988 25,479 1,765 23,714 8,525 11,257 19,782 1.20
1989 29,477 2,223 27,254 8.505 10,584 19,089 1.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 9,873 18,773 151
1991 28,963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11,015 19,455 1.38
1992 24,592 1,994 22,598 10,645 18,820 29,565 76
1993 25,204 2,368 22,836 10,645 18,595 29,240 78
1994 29,802 2,138 27,664 23,085 19,116 42,201 .66
1695 30,806 2,864 27,942 4,335 20,123 24,458 1.14
1996 30,487 2,898 27,589 10,695 19,747 30,442 91
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency®
(Expressed in Thousands)
Forthe
Fiscal )
E‘fle:erd Gross Og:tcitng ?:;i]i‘:l;’]?}ﬁi Debt Service Requirements
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest™ Total Coverage
1987 $ 159,034 $ 8,083 $ 150946 $ 14,987 $ 136,625 $ 151,012 1.00
1988 162,172 8,593 153,579 15,960 138,508 154,468 .99
1989 182,535 8,402 174,133 20,226 148,327 168,553 1.03
1990 199,101 9,133 189,968 21,568 157,104 178,672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15
1992 206,991 8,496 198,495 28,118 172,146 200,264 99
1993 200,268 9,803 196,465 27,410 166,480 193,890 98
1994 194,025 13,325 180,700 29,426 143,904 173,330 1.05
1995 196,023 16,095 179,928 51,406 139,621 191,027 .54
1996 208,048 16,979 191,069 40,839 146,452 187,291 1.02

@ Excludes interest on notes payable
®) Discretely Presented Component Unit.
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION— TABLE 6 i
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES 1
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

—— (Expressed in Thot ds) |

Calendar Year United States Pennsylvania % “!
1986 240,162 11,784 4.9
1987 242,321 11,812 4.9
1988 244,534 11,847 4.8
1989 246,820 11,866 48 .
1990 248,710 11,882 438
1991 252,160 11,958 4.7 C
1992 255,028 11,990 47 ) i
1993 257,783 12,030 4.7 !
1994 260,341 12,052 4.6 o
1995 264,023 12,072 4.6 P

SOURCE: 1U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census
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; STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS — TABLE 7
l : DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

—————— (Expressed in Th ds) ]
Time and
Calendar Year Demand Deposits . Savings Deposits
1986 $ 6,632,325 $ 45,351,526
1987 6,443,804 47,556,165
1988 6,558,607 50,347,975
1989 6,481,900 53,565,427
1990 6,453,740 50,542,812
1991 6,308,495 52,112,591
1962 7,150,024 51,434,858
1993 7,620,397 54,334,637
1994 6,952,868 49,674,200
1995 7,124,441 51,766,777

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking
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_ TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME— TABLE 9
L PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES '
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME
(Millions of Dollars) {Dellars)
Calendar ’—— ———I I—_— ﬁ

Year United States Pennsylvania T United States Pennsylvania Yo

1986 3,519,364 169,697 4.8 14,910 14,715 98.7
1987 3,754,577 180,559 4.8 15,641 15,449 98.8
1988 4,063,045 195,107 4.8 16,615 16,468 99.1
1989 4,366,135 211,739 4.8 17,690 17,844 100.9
1990 4,655,420 224,628 4.8 18,718 18,905 101.0
1991 4,841,078 234,643 4.8 18,201 19,640 102.3
1992 5,137,875 247,323 4.8 20,146 20,627 102.4
1993 5,364,300 256,408 4.8 20,809 21,314 102.4
1994 5,649,010 267,501 4.7 21,6599 ‘22, 196 102.3
1995 5,987,536 281,021 47 22,788 23,279 102.2

SOURCE: U.8. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10 C

For the Calendar Year 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : ’ {;J
EMPLOYER RANK .
o
Pennsylvania State URIVEISity .....cccoevviiiiieiiincnninecnnenis e e 1 -
K Mart COTPOTALION ....cc.iciiiiiniiriiic ettt et ee et s e e 2 D
United Parcel Service INC ...t 3
Trustecs of the University of Pennsylvania ..........coceveceieeeoeceiccennnen, 4
Wal-Mart Stores HIC ..ot 5 o
US Aif, IICOMPOFAIEA ...oerveeereeersseseers e et 6 N
MEIOD BANK, NA ..o oo 7
BEIl AHANEC «.vvvevere e eceseeeeaseesreessereseessessessesseemeesseseesssesesersesseneeoee 8 -
Sears Roebuck and COMPANY ......voveeueevveeeeeeeecaeeeces e eeeeeeen 9 i
Weis Markets INC ..ot 10 =
University of PHtSBUIZh ..co.eveeceee e 11
(O 12 1
JCPenney Co, INC .o 13 I
Strawbridge & CIOthIEr coovvvvevvveeeeeerererreeeeneren eeeeeeeeereeee e s 14 |
Westinghouse Electric COIP .ot e 15
The Prudential Insurance €O .o e 16
Giant FOOd StOTeS, TNC .ot eeeevaeeesensassensenes 17 | |
COTESTALS .o eses oo 18 S
ACME MATKELS INC ooveverrererceriereessssesssenss e essc s en s ss s senne 19 S
AMP Incorporated ... e 20 C
Temple UNIVEISILY ..c.oicuieriecicct e eccee s e ecneses e seserass s 21 .
Thomas Jefferson University ...t ensseenes 22 o
Penn Traffic COmMpPany ...t vtren 23 ‘ l
Hershey Foods Corporation ... 24 |
Southeastern PA Transportation ...t erraseenes 25 E
Presbyterian University Hospital ..., 26 -
Thrift Drug, INC. e e 27
ATET ettt st et a s s e s e 28
Giant Eagle INC. oottt eerre e s e e 29 -
General Electric COmpPany . .....oocviiciiiiiniieeeeeeceeve et e 30

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

TABLE 11

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Advanta Corporation

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Alrgas

Alco Standard Corporation
Allegheny Ludlum Corporation
Aluminum Company of America
AMP Incorporated

Aramark

ARCO Chemical

Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Arrow International

Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethlehem Steel Corporation
Betz Laboratories

Centocor

Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
CoreStates Financial Corporation
Crown Cork and Seal Company
Dauphin Deposit Corporation
Dentsply International

DQE Corporation

Equitable Resources

General Nutrition

Glatfelter (P.H.) Company

Fore Systems

H.J. Heinz Company

Harsco Corporation

Hershey Foods Corporation
Integra Financial Corporation
Intelligent Electronics

Jones Apparel Group

Mellon Bank Corp.

Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Mylan Laboratories

PNC Financial Corporation
PPG Industries, Inc,

PECO Energy

Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.

- Pep Boys

Quaker State Corporation
Rhone—Poulenc Rorer
Rite Aid Corporation
Rohm and Haas Company
Sun Company, Inc.
Sungard Data Systerns
UGI Corporation

Union Pacific Corporation
UNISYS Corporation

U.S. Healthcare

USX Corporation

VF Corporation

Vishay Intertechnology
Weis Markets, Incorporated
Westinghouse Electric Corporation
York International

SOURCE: Fortune, April 29, 1996; The Business Week 1000, March 25, 1996,
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 MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

June 30, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution

December 12, 1787

Form of Government  Legislative-Executive-Judicial
Miles of State Highway 40,408
Land Area — in square miles 44,888
State Police Protection:
Number of Stations 106
Number of State Police 4,228
Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
Community Colleges):
Number of campuses in state 239
Number of educators 22,213
Number of students 618,644
Recreation:
Number of State Parks 116
Area of State Parks 282,500 Acres

Area of State Forests

2,095,315 Acres

~ SQURCE: Pemnsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning

Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services
Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Bureau of Forestry
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